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Financial Highlights

2021 2020
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HK$ million HK$ million

HEBT BEAT

Revenue WA 418.2 341.8
Profit attributable to owners of the Company KA REB AFTERF 63.3 66.9
Property, plant and equipment W - BB K& 2115 209.3
Equity Eam 394.7 350.4
Basic earnings per share BREAREF HK23.71 centsi&fli  HK25.06 centsi&l
REVENUE BY OPERATING SEGMENT REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
report the annual audited results of the Company together with the
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted
to approximately HK$418.2 million, representing an increase of 22.4%
from the previous year. Overall gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$106.7 million, representing an increase of 0.9% from the previous
year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$63.3 million (2020: HK$66.9 million).

Basic earnings for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
HK23.71 cents (2020: HK25.06 cents) per share.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The COVID-19 pandemic continued to bring challenges in year 2021,
but the global economy had gradually recovered after the roll out of
vaccination. Benefitted from the surge in sales orders from customers,
the Group’s turnover had increased as compared with year 2020.
However, due to the appreciation of Renminbi (“RMB"), the rise
in the material price and the absence of waiver by the Chinese
governmental authority of the employer’s social security contribution
granted in 2020, the gross profit margin of the Group had dropped
as compared with year 2020. The influence of RMB appreciation in
2021 on the manufacturing cost of the Group had been managed
by the forward currency contracts, which the mechanism had been
discussed in previous interim and annual reports. The operating result
also included an unrealised fair value gain from the forward currency
contracts expiring in years 2022 and 2023 (which were entered to
manage the influence of the volatility of RMB on manufacturing costs
for years 2022 and 2023). The unrealised fair value gain is a non-cash
accounting treatment and had no impact on the Group’s cash flow
for year 2021.
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

For the precision parts and components segment, the turnover increased
by 22.4% to approximately HK$418.2 million as compared with 2020.
If excluded the above-mentioned unrealised fair value gain of $10.8
million (2020: HK$25.5 million) on forward currency contracts, the
segment profit had increased to approximately HK$63.6 million (2020:
HK$54.5 million). The improvement was mainly attributable to the rise
in sales order from customers, but partly offset by the rise in material
price and absence of waiver of social security contribution granted in
2020 as discussed above.

The gross profit margin of the Group in 2021 had decreased by
5.5% to 25.5% as compared with 2020 with the reasons discussed
above. The selling and distribution costs slightly decreased by 4.3%
to approximately HK$24.6 million, while the administrative and other
expenses decreased by 14.7% to approximately HK$28.6 million mainly
caused by the drop in exchange loss as compared with 2020. The
financial costs slightly decreased by HK$0.1 million to approximately
HK$0.4 million due to the drop of market interest rate in 2021.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the Russo-Ukrainian War disturbs the supply of
commodities, escalates the energy prices, and distorts the global
recovery arising from the strong international economy sanctions on
trade. The recent widespread lockdowns in Mainland China from the
Omicron COVID-19 spread induces the suspension production of the
raw materials, which disturbs the operation of the Group as well as the
customers. Together with the increase in material price, the shortfall
of semiconductors, the volatility of RMB and the increase in labour
wages in Mainland China which is effective from 1 January 2022, all
of these create uncertainties to the Group. Despite these, we are still
confident of our business outlook for the year 2022 as the new selling
price to customers of the Group had been fully effective from the
fourth quarter of 2021, and its financial impact will be fully reflected
in year 2022. In addition, the Group will keep on utilising the forward
currency contracts to manage the impact on the manufacturing costs
from the volatility of RMB. The capacity and efficiency of the Group had
been enhanced through the co-operation with satellite manufacturing
plants during the past two years. As such, we are still confident that
the Group will maintain the growth momentum and profitability in the
future. The Group’s financial position remains healthy and is strong
enough to finance our daily operation.
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APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our board of directors,
management team and all our staff for their contribution, and also
thank for the support of our shareholders and business partners over
the years.

Lai Pei Wor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The following highlights the Group’s results for the year ended 31
December 2021.

e  Turnover increased by 22.4% from the previous year to
approximately HK$418.2 million for the year.

e Gross profit increased by HK$0.9 million from the previous year
to approximately HK$106.7 million in 2021.

e Profit before finance costs decreased by HK$5.1 million from
previous year to approximately HK$73.0 million for the year.

e  Finance costs decreased by HK$0.1 million from the previous
year to approximately HK$0.4 million.

e Profit after tax for the year was approximately HK$63.3 million.

In the year under review, turnover of the precision parts and components
segment had increased by 22.4% as compared with the previous year.

The Group’s overall gross profit had increased by 0.9% from the
previous year.

The Group’'s finance costs had dropped to approximately HK$0.4
million for the year due to decrease in market interest rate.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and loan facilities provided by its principal bankers and other
financial institution in Hong Kong.

The total borrowings from banks included all term loans, import and
export loans, which amounted to approximately HK$18.8 million as
at 31 December 2021.

The Group’s financial position remains healthy. At the end of the
reporting period, the aggregate balance of bank balances and cash
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$94.4 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (continued)

The Group’s borrowings are on a floating rate basis and are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars. These
match with the principal currencies in which the Group conducts its
business.

The gearing ratio on the basis of net debt divided by the total capital
plus net debt as at 31 December 2021 was 3.0% (2020: 5.4%).

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

At 31 December 2021, none of the Group’s machines and equipment
was pledged under lease, while the machines and equipment carrying
amount of approximately HK$3.0 million was pledged under lease as
at 31 December 2020.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had 267,004,800 ordinary
shares in issue with total shareholders’ equity of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$394.7 million.

FUND RAISING

Other than obtaining general loan facilities to finance the Group’s
trading requirements, the Group did not have any fund raising activities
in 2021.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total workforce of
approximately 866 of which approximately 31 were based in Hong
Kong, approximately 5 were based in overseas and approximately 830
were based in Mainland China.

The Group remunerates its employees largely based on the prevailing
industry practice and labour laws. Since December 1996, the Company
has adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to the employees of the Group.

Moreover, under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of
Hong Kong, the Group has operated a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme for all its Hong Kong
employees. For overseas and Mainland China employees, the Group is
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme operated by the respective local governments.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with all
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code, as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, throughout the year ended
31 December 2021, except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 (now re-arranged as C.2.1) stipulates that the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are not separate and
are performed by Mr. Lai Pei Wor. Since the Board will meet regularly
to consider major matters affecting the operations of the Company,
the Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company and believes that this structure will enable the Company to
make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company currently comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors

Lai Pei Wor (Chairman)
Chan Yau Wah (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Kung Fan Cheong
Mak Kwai Wing
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors representing more
than one-third of the Board with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
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Responsibilities and delegation of functions

The Board of the Company is collectively responsible for the oversight
of the management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders’ value. The overall management
of the Company’s business is vested in the Board. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day management of the Company’s business to
the executive directors. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

The Board focuses its attention on matters affecting the Company’s
overall strategic policies, finances and shareholders. These include
financial statements, dividend policy, significant changes in accounting
policy, the annual operating budget, certain material contracts,
strategies for future growth, major financing arrangements and major
investments, risk management strategies, treasury policies and group
structure.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective oversight over the
management. The Board members are fully committed to their roles
and have acted in good faith to maximise the shareholders’ value in
the long run, and has aligned the Group’s goals and directions with
the prevailing economic and market conditions. Daily operations and
administration are delegated to the management.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in respect
of director’s liability.

BERREZBRE

ARREEFEHFAAREEAEEEBLE
HEBNEETE  WARABRRZEBER
B ARRIZEEBXBHEFSARAEE
B EEeRENTESEEARR AR

X% mH BEERCORUERES MHEZ
ERBAERE  DRIENBEEEA -

B TREAFEARAEREREN
B BB MRERONEE - AR EREM KR
= %QBZM BETRR ZEXEN - BF
RETRE  ETERRH - RRBRKR -
v‘?ﬁééﬂ??&iﬁ&ﬁ [\ B TR SR B
Eﬂ‘%ﬁﬁ&;’%lm%

ExetTEEERRRRR  REHMK
RENRHERBEFBNEE - EFEENE
BERDBT  XERTE  UBNRERS
REREZEE BESAKEZBENRTR
HERKERTESRAES - AREERE
ETHRRIRMEEERE -

ARBEHEZZEERFRAELRR -

BRHEERZERERAR




TEER

$&d:

Corporate Governance Report

BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year ended 31 December 2021, four regular board meetings
were held at approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company and
one annual general meeting was held. The attendance record of each
director is set out below:

Attendance of annual
general meeting

EEgEERRFAFAE
ERBARERHERLR
BE-T-—4+-A=t+-ALEER:

SR RTNATHEH  IBFEET
DA RS RALEAREE 2 F B REERR - I
ERRHEARDNR 2 BERE IR R R

—RREBEFRE - FFF 2 H BN
T

Attendance of
Board meetings

in 2021 in 2021
SBE-FHE TB--FHE
Name of director EEHA RFGEFE RERE EEEERAK
Lai Pei Wor FEIEA 11 4/4
Chan Yau Wah PR EE 171 4/4
Kung Fan Cheong LlEE 1/1 4/4
Mak Kwai Wing BEL 1/1 4/4
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =8y 1/1 4/4
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION EERREE
The Company has not set up a corporate governance committee. The — AR R BB EE)

Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
set out hereunder:

(a)

develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the employees and directors of the
Company;

review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report; and

review these terms of reference and their effectiveness and from
time to time recommend any necessary changes.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 (now re-arranged as C.2.1) stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are not
separate and are performed by Mr. Lai Pei Wor. Since the Board will
meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of
the Company, the Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company and believes that this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and efficiently.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive directors have contracts with the
Company for a specified period of two years and are appointed
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws
and the CG Code.

Each independent non-executive director has made an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company and the Company
considers these directors to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. None of the directors is related to each other.

Mr. Kung Fan Cheong and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph, who have been
serving as Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
for more than 9 years, have confirmed their independence with
reference to the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers Mr. Kung Fan Cheong and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan,
Joseph are still independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and will continue to bring
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Based on specific enquiry of the
Company’s directors, all directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
recommends directors to attend relevant seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. All directors also participate in
continuous professional development programmes such as external
seminars organised by qualified professionals or reading books and
articles, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation
to their contribution to the Board. A record of the training received
by the respective directors are kept by the company secretary of the
Company.

The individual training record of each director received for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is summarised below:

FEEXRR

RBPEFZRHBEERER  ARFREET

EHFEHREZERENERLREHRE 2 M
LR c 2REENAHFERHETEERR
AHE - A A BERERALAENZ IMNEE
HEYMEBEARXE  IRFHEFE L
BRBERMEFRSCAB LG - BEF
P 2 EDlR M AR B AR EFE -

BHE_Z-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE &
BRI Z AR el T

Number of training received
that are relevant to

the business or

directors’ duties

ESEREBREETREZ
Name of Director BEEHA 3R E
Lai Pei Wor FEEE TN 2
Chan Yau Wah PRz 5 1
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 3
Mak Kwai Wing EHK 1
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =8y 2

All the directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Mr. Tsang Wai Lun (“Mr. Tsang”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 3 May 2019. Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules, Mr. Tsang has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRESHTHRIFESEERZEEN
EEESEEMAE T - LNBEREERR
F 2 FE R e

BEEEE(EREDR_ZE—LFRA=
AEZTARRGRRIWE - RIF LRI
#3290 BARERBEZT-_—F+=A
=+ —BHLFEEES L1525
ZEEI -
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Executive
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website (except Executive
Committee) and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the current members of each Board committee (except
Executive Committee) are independent non-executive directors, while
all the members of the Executive Committee are executive directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee currently comprises 2 executive directors,
namely, Mr. Lai Pei Wor (chairman) and Mr. Chan Yau Wah. The
Executive Committee shall meet as it may consider appropriate.

The duties of the Executive Committee are as follows:

(@) to monitor the execution of the Company’s strategic plans and
operations of all business units of the Company;

(b) to discuss and make decisions on matters relating to the
management and operations of the Company;

(c) toexercise the functions and responsibilities of the Board between
its regular meetings; and

(d) to review and discuss any other matters as may from time to
time be delegated to it by the Board.

EXgZEY
BEYORUNEZESY  HRTZEE
TMES® REZEGLRBREES U

EBEARRAEHBZBTIE - ARFMABE
EEZBeURE@MME 2 BIESBEMT -
EXESZE g REBECR AR R HEET
BBRITZEEHRIN) LA EERFABIRE
#Ho

el

BRIEZEEZRE(WITREERINZEIE
REGRBIIFNTES  BHTEZES
FIERBYRATES -

ExeZEoRRHERNERBETHERS -
WA ERSREZEEER  REEBAT
SRBEUEXER  BRABARARAR -

HITEES
HITZESENBEMBANTESEX - B
FEIEMEE(EE) RREERE - HITERE
SRABERNTEME -

WITZEBEZBENT

(a) ERARBRBEEZHITRARAIMN
BOEERBEE

(b) BMEBARAZERNEEZEHELT
AT M AEHURER -

(0 RETHEHZERTESS2BER
gL N

d) B RFAREFSAETHRENTZ
EREMER -

BRHEERZERERAR




ERERERE
Corporate Governance Report

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 3 members, all of
them are independent non-executive directors. The members of the
Remuneration Committee are Mr. Kung Fan Cheong (chairman), Mr.
Mak Kwai Wing and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting.
The attendance record of each Remuneration Committee member is
set out below:

FHZEES

FMEEGRMM=RREMAR  HKEY
RBUFNTES - GTHEAERERILE
BRE(ERE)  BEREERFRHFEE -

REER FWHEZESCHRT - REHE - F
MEZEEEXBE 2RI

Attendance of Remuneration
Committee meeting in 2021

—EC-FHE
Name of director BEEpE FHEES SRR
Kung Fan Cheong (Chairman) LEE FE) 11
Mak Kwai Wing EER 1/1
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =] 171

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) toreview and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management,
which should include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

(e) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

¥R EecE2AERIIENT

(a)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(f) to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(g) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

(h) to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration;

(i)  to review and sanction new or amended salary, incentive bonus
and retirement benefit policies for the Group which are substantial
in their cost and have an impact on a significant proportion of
employees; and

() to review the Committee’s terms of reference and its own
effectiveness and recommend to the Board from time to time
any necessary changes.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee made recommendations
to the Board on executive directors’ remuneration packages and terms
of employment. The Remuneration Committee also formulated and
evaluated the remuneration policy and structure for the directors and
senior management of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 (now re-arranged as E.1.5) of the CG
Code, the remuneration of the members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

FMEES (@)

() B RBAERNTEEREREIEAR
AT R I B HE B 0
R AR R LA 0 AR —
B ERERANER B BEIVE
ATAR - THBES

(9 BRI RHEREETRAEMEERE
REWESFI R EREE - AR
SELHEBOIRR B BRERS
WK —2 - ARRENTASEEE

(h) BREMEFHEHEABEANG2A
BRI B O RF B

(i)  WE RAERREESREARANTZE
REDEBZHHETNTE - 22/
TEAL RORREFRR &

() HAEBENBRBERLARY P
THOEESEREMEBENEE -

REER  FHEEERRNTEZTZHME
MEBBERAESSREER - FHEER
SR RFEARAEERRREEAR
2 FBNBR R A o
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BELCEEATIFEBISR(BO N AS
E15) REBE-ZE-—F+=-_A=+—
BIEtFEZFMERE D 2o REEABH
BM#EZI 0T -

Number of individuals

Remuneration by band 7 B 48 7B #8 B A 21
Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,000 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 72 1,500,000/ 7T 2

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

1,500,001 7% 2,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001;8 752,500,000/ 7T

Further particulars regarding directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 1 executive director,
namely, Mr. Lai Pei Wor (chairman) and 3 independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Kung Fan Cheong, Mr. Mak Kwai Wing and
Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each Nomination Committee member is set
out below:

REEES
REZESANAH—BNITES - BIENL
E(EE)R=ZBBIFATESEK - B
FERLE  BEREERTNIBELE -

REFER  REZEGCHET - RSH - 12
HLRBERKEB ZHFERENT

Attendance of Nomination
Committee meeting in 2021

—EBEC-FHE
Name of director EEHA REZEEERRY
Lai Pei Wor (Chairman) IR (£/E) 11
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 11
Mak Kwai Wing BHELE 11
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =8 1/1
The duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows: REZEe 7 BENT
(@) to review the structure, size and diversity (including but not (a) ZEAVEFHTESSHIZEE - ALK
limited to age, gender, skills, professional and industry experience, BZTL(BREERRNFR - 5 -
educational background, knowledge and length of service) of e BERTELSR #HEHXSE M

the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive;

to review the board diversity policy, as appropriate and the
measurable objectives that the board has set for implementing
the board diversity policy, and monitor the progress on achieving
the objectives; and

to review the Committee’s terms of reference and its own
effectiveness and recommend to the Board from time to time
any necessary changes.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board, and sees diversity at Board level as an essential element in
maintaining a competitive advantage. A diverse Board will include and
make good use of differences in the age, gender, skills, professional
and industry experience, educational background, knowledge and
length of service. These differences will be considered in determining
the optimum composition of the Board and when possible should be
balanced appropriately. All appointments of the members of the Board
are made on merit against objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Diversity at all levels have been shown to improve retention and
reduce the costs associated with employee turnover. In a diverse
workplace, employees are more likely remain loyal when they feel
respected, valued for their unique contribution and the importance
of being able to attract, retain and motivate employees from the
widest possible pool of available talent. Employees are more likely
to feel comfortable and happy in an environment where inclusivity
is a priority. Equality in the workplace is important for encouraging
workers from all backgrounds to feel confident in their ability and
achieve their best. The Company are committed to diversity at all
levels, including gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience. The recruitment and selection practices at all
levels are appropriately structured so that a diverse range of candidates
are considered. The Company would identify and provide the relevant
professional training programs that will assist in the development of a
broader and more diverse pool of skilled and experienced employees
and that, in time, their skills will prepare them for senior management
and board positions.

The Nomination Committee of the Company reviews and assesses the
composition of the Board and makes recommendations to the Board
on appointment of new directors of the Company. The Nomination
Committee also oversees the conduct of the annual review of the
effectiveness of the Board and will give adequate consideration
to this Policy including gender balance of the directors and senior
management and their direct reports, and its progress in achieving
its diversity objectives.

Selection of individuals will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to age, gender, skills, professional and industry
experience, educational background, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected individuals will bring to the Board.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY EERABBR
1. Nomination and Appointment of Directors 1. ESNRERER
(a) Criteria (a) %A

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, ERERREREANETES
the following criteria should be considered: B THIERIEHERE -

Character and integrity.

Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity aspects
under the Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to
the Company’s business and corporate strategy.

Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board.

Requirement for the Board to have independent
directors in accordance with the Hong Kong Listing
Rules and whether the candidate would be considered
independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or
Board committee(s) of the Company.

Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the
Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time
to time for nomination of directors and succession
planning.

ER BREXER K
T3~ Fa M AR R R K
REAENER  URES
S8 Z T L BUR PR A 19
ZlbEE -

REDEFEEREZ LM
RANEAAIGTERR -

RE(ETRAD) EFE
FEREBUIFNTEFTOR
E o AKRZ2E(ETRADA
PR RIE AR S WAR R IEAL
HFE3

REANBEEER  &I7-
K B RMERMNZ T
FEAREEEHERNEM
BERR -

EERENRELEAHRKE
WREETHEREFTENXE
R/ FEETEFEETEE
EMZBMRE

HibBARARBER ME
HEIAENEMBTERE
REZEGR /HEFEA
HEERERETERRAE -

K & P International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021




TRERBME

Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (continued)

2. Nomination Process

(a) Appointment of New Director

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
rank them by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each candidate
(where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of director at the general
meeting.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (continued)
2. Nomination Process (continued)
(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

(iii) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

Where the board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect
a candidate as director at the general meeting, the relevant
information of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying
the notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The appointment of new directors will be considered and approved
by the Board and all new directors are subject to re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment
and subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
pursuant to the CG Code.

Mr. Chan Yau Wah and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph shall retire by
rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
next forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to the Company’s
Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2).

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors standing
for re-election at the next forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Company’s circular dated 27 April 2022 contains detailed
information of the directors standing for re-election.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditor, Messrs. Mazars CPA Limited, is set out as follows:

REE N &

BEARFER - KRAEMN T/ A TZE
B ESIR (BB GFTMEBMABRARZ
T

Fees paid/payable

HK$

B EAER

Services rendered FriR o AR 3% BT
Audit services Z B BRTS 880,000
Non-audit services (taxation services) I BRTE (FRTGARTS) 41,000
921,000

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in relation
to the composition of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee of
the Company comprises three independent non-executive directors.
The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Mak Kwai
Wing, Mr. Kung Fan Cheong and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. Mak Kwai Wing who has appropriate
accounting professional qualifications. Code Provision C.3.3 (now re-
arranged as D.3.3) stipulates that members of the Audit Committee
should meet at least twice a year with the Company’s auditors. During
the year, there were two meetings held between the Audit Committee
and the Company’s auditor. Besides, the Audit Committee shall meet
at least twice a year. During the year, the Audit Committee held three
meetings. The attendance record of each Audit Committee member
is set out below:
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TR EH - ANFEN BEREZEEEET
—REH BEREEGINE 2 HEL iR
T

Attendance of Audit
Committee meetings in 2021

—EC-FHE
Name of director BEEpA BEREEEERRY
Mak Kwai Wing (Chairman) BEE (F/F) 3/3
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 3/3
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph % 3/3
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include the
review of the Group’s consolidated financial statements and reporting
process, risk management system and internal control procedures. It
also acts as an important link between the Board and the Company’s
auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit. During the
meetings held in 2021, the Audit Committee had performed the
following works:

(i) reviewed the directors’ report and audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the internal auditor or
external auditor before submission to the Board;

(i) reviewed the interim consolidated financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2021;

(iii) reviewed the re-appointment of the external auditor and the
nature and scope of audits;

(iv) reviewed and recommended for approval by the board the 2021
audit scope and fees;

(v) reviewed and monitored the external auditor's independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard;

(vi) reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control system; and

(vii) reviewed the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021. The directors ensure the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The directors also ensure the publication of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is in a timely manner.

The statement of the Auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the Group’s consolidated financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 47 to 52.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an
ongoing basis. Such risk management and internal control systems
are designed for managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, has overall
responsibilities for maintaining effective risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. During the year, the Board
conducted a review of the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, covering financial,
operational, compliance control and risk management functions.
The Group’s system of internal control includes the setting up of a
management structure with limits of authority, and is designed to help
the Group achieve its business objectives, protects its assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensures the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensures compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. After reviewing the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, the Board considers that the systems are
effective and adequate for the Group as a whole. The Board further
considers that there was no material issue relating to the Group’s
risk management and internal controls systems including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group and that there were adequate staff with appropriate
and adequate qualifications and experience, resources for accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate training
programmes had been provided during the year.

The internal control team of the Company plays a major role in
monitoring the risk management and internal controls of the Group
and reports directly to the Audit Committee. It has full access to
review all aspects of the Group's activities, risk management and
internal controls. All types of audited reports are circulated to the
Audit Committee and key management, which will follow up on any
actions and measures taken to improve risk management and internal
controls on the recommendations by the internal control team.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks
by the Group are summarized as follows:

e |dentifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business
and operations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

e Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of their
occurrence.

e Determines the risk management strategies and internal control
processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

e  Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and ensures
that appropriate internal control processes are in place.

e Reports the results of risk monitoring to the Audit Committee
and the Board regularly.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by an internal audit
team, which reports directly to the Audit Committee and the Board
on a periodical basis. The team conducts internal audit reviews on
material controls and compliance with policies and procedures of the
Group at both operational and corporate levels. Plans for corrective
actions and control improvement are identified and communicated
with operations management to address any issues, non-compliance
or deficiencies identified. The team monitors the implementation of
its recommendations by the operations management and reports the
outcome to the Audit Committee and the Board.

DIVIDEND POLICY

e The board of directors of the Company adopt the policy that,
in recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder value.

e The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio.

e  The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company, subject to the Articles of
the Association of the Company and all applicable laws and
regulations and the factors set out below.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the
Company and its subsidiaries when considering the declaration
and payment of dividends:

- financial results;

—  cash flow situation;

—  business conditions and strategies;

—  future operations and earnings;

—  capital requirements and expenditure plans;

— interests of shareholders;

— any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

— any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the
Group and the conditions and factors as set out above, dividends

may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial
year or period:

interim dividend;

final dividend;

—  special dividend; and

— any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.

Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to
shareholders’ approval.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or
scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.

Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to
the Company in accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as provided
in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public,
the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group
would immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group
is committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
or circulars are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false
or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Audit Committee and, in their absence,
other members of the respective committees are available to answer
questions at shareholder meetings.

The 2022 Annual General Meeting (“AGM") will be held on 26 May
2022. The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the AGM.

To promote effective communication with shareholders, the Company
maintains a website at www.kpihl.com, where extensive information
and updates on the Company’s financial information, corporate
governance code and other information are posted and available for
public access.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS
Convening a special general meeting (“SGM")

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, member(s) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings, may by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary
of the Company to require a SGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition at the expense
of such requisitionist(s). If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of section
74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The requisition must
specify the purpose of the meeting, and must be signed by the relevant
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the head office of the Company in
Hong Kong.

If the requisition is in order, the company secretary will ask the Board
to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered members. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the members concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened
as requested.

The notice period to be given to all the registered members for
consideration of the proposal raised by the member(s) concerned at
a SGM varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

(@) at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than ten (10)
clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company, which cannot be amended
other than to a mere clerical amendment to correct a patent
error; and

(b) at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten (10) clear
business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings other RRBRRASIRSBEESLUIIZEE
than a Proposal for Election of Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s bye-laws, UTRRFSAAT ZAGME]  BRE—N
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and N—FRalENEREAENOERFIR ¢

regulation:

1. The Company holds an AGM every year, and may hold a general
meeting known as a SGM whenever necessary.

2. Member(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of all members having the right to vote
at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 members, can
submit a written request stating the resolution intended to be
moved at the AGM; or a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

3. The written request/statements must be signed by the member(s)
concern and deposited at the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and its principal office at Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei
Muk Road, Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong, for the attention of
the company secretary of the Company, not less than six weeks
before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution and not less than one week before the general
meeting in the case of any other requisition.

4. If the written request is in order, the company secretary will ask
the Board of the Company (i) to include the resolution in the
agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the statement for the
general meeting, provided that the member(s) concerned have
deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by the Board
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice
of the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted
by the member(s) concerned in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered members. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid or the member(s) concerned have failed
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the said purposes, the member(s) concerned will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not
be included in the agenda for the AGM; or the statement will
not be circulated for the general meeting.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Members who have enquires about the above procedures or have
enquires to put to the Board may write to the company secretary
at Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung,
N.T., Hong Kong.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address: Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road,
Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Chairman/Company Secretary)
Fax: (852) 2481 3098

Email: enquiry@kpihl.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law. Shareholders may call the Company at (852) 2276 3000 for any
assistance.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholder meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholder meeting will be taken by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
the shareholder meeting.

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the directors and senior management of the
Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Pei Wor, aged 65, is the chairman and managing director of
the Company. Mr. Lai was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 13 September 1996. He is the founder of the Group
and has over 40 years of experience in the industry. He is responsible
for the Group’s overall strategic planning, policy making and financial
management. He has been a director of Hi-Tech Precision Industrial
Limited since 1984, a director of HTP Industrial Limited (formerly
known as Hideki Electronics Limited) since 1989, a director of Cokeen
Development Limited and K. S. (China) Electronics Manufactory Limited
since 1990, a director of K & P Group (Holdings) Limited since 1994, a
director of Hi-Tech Investment Holdings Limited and Hi-Tech Property
Holdings Limited since 1997, a director of E-Dotcom Limited since
2001, a director of Hi-Tech (China) Investment Limited and A2 Z&(Fh
IL)E-FHBBRAF] since 2002, a director of Mars Field Limited and a
director and legal representative of HILTE Y E FHRRAF] since
2010 and acted as a director of Technology Trends International Limited
since 2001 and a secretary since 2009. He has also been appointed
as a director of Sun Ngai Plastic Products Factory Limited, a director
of Hunpex Limited, and a director and legal representative of $RHiE
BHE(RYINEMR A A since 2013.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Chan Yau Wah, aged 63, is the deputy chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
13 September 1996. He is also a general manager in Hi-Tech Investment
Holdings Limited. Mr. Chan joined the Group in December 1990. He is
responsible for the planning and management in production activities.
He holds a higher diploma in production and industrial engineering
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) and a diploma in management studies from
the Hong Kong Management Association. He has over 40 years of
experience in the industry. He has been a director of HTP Industrial
Limited (formerly known as Hideki Electronics Limited) and K & P Group
(Holdings) Limited since 1994, a director of K. S. (China) Electronics
Manufactory Limited since 1995, a director of Hi-Tech Investment
Holdings Limited and Hi-Tech Property Holdings Limited since 1997,
a director of Technology Trends International Limited since 2001, a
director of Hi-Tech (China) Investment Limited and " & ()& F
BMRAE] since 2002 and acted as a director of E-Dotcom Limited
since 2009. He has also been appointed as a director of Sun Ngai
Plastic Products Factory Limited, a director of Hunpex Limited, and a
supervisor of SRIRZERIFEL(RIINAR AR since 2013.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kung Fan Cheong, aged 67, is a partner in the law firm of Pang,
Kung & Co. and is a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr.
Kung was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 13 September 1996.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Mak Kwai Wing, BSoc.Sc., ATIHK, FCPA (Aust), aged 72, graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Social
Sciences. He is also a Fellow of CPA Australia and an Associate of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Mak was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 3 July 2017.
Mr. Mak has over 40 years of experience in the taxation field. In July
2006, Mr. Mak joined Mazars Tax Services Limited (“Mazars Tax") as
an executive director, was a managing director of Mazars Tax from
January 2008 to August 2014 and was a Senior Advisor of Mazars Tax
from September 2014 to June 2017. Before joining Mazars Tax, Mr.
Mak was a tax principal at Ernst & Young and took early retirement
in January 2004. Currently, Mr. Mak is an independent non-executive
director of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00882)
and a member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association. Previously, Mr. Mak served as the governor of Rotary
International District 3450 and the Chairman of the Tax Specialization
Development Working Group of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph, aged 69, graduated from State University
of New York at Buffalo in the United States of America and holds
a bachelor of science in business administration degree. Mr. Li was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 24 August 2005. After working in the business sector for 9 years,
he joined the Secretariat of Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 1985
as an assistant director and in 1992 he was appointed as a director of
the Secretariat of Federation of Hong Kong Industries from which post
he retired in January 2005. He has over 33 years experience in serving
the manufacturing industry of Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Man Kit, aged 62, is the marketing director of precision
parts and components segment of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the
Group in 1984. He is responsible for the marketing and sales. He has
over 38 years of experience in the industry.

Mr. Li Kam Keung, aged 61, is the production manager of the precision
parts and components segment in Kong Hau factory, Zhongshan.
Mr. Li joined the Group in 1985. He is responsible for the operation
and management in production segment. He has over 35 years of
experience in the industry.
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The directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries were the manufacture and
sale of precision parts and components (comprising keypads, synthetic
rubber and plastic components and parts). There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 151.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK8.0
cents per ordinary share (2020: HK7.5 cents) for the year ended 31
December 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS FOR ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
23 May 2022 to Thursday, 26 May 2022, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to qualify for attending and voting at the annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on Thursday, 26 May 2022, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 20 May 2022.
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Report of the Directors

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS FOR FINAL DIVIDEND

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
2 June 2022 to Tuesday, 7 June 2022, both dates inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify
for the above final dividend of the Company, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited,
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 1 June 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The COVID-19 pandemic continued to bring challenges in year 2021,
but the global economy had gradually recovered after the roll out of
vaccination. Benefitted from the surge in sales orders from customers,
the Group’s turnover had increased as compared with year 2020.
However, due to the appreciation of Renminbi (“RMB"”), the rise
in the material price and the absence of waiver by the Chinese
governmental authority of the employer’s social security contribution
granted in 2020, the gross profit margin of the Group had dropped
as compared with year 2020. The influence of RMB appreciation in
2021 on the manufacturing cost of the Group had been managed
by the forward currency contracts, which the mechanism had been
discussed in previous interim and annual reports. The operating result
also included an unrealised fair value gain from the forward currency
contracts expiring in years 2022 and 2023 (which were entered to
manage the influence of the volatility of RMB on manufacturing costs
for years 2022 and 2023). The unrealised fair value gain is a non-cash
accounting treatment and had no impact on the Group’s cash flow
for year 2021.

For the precision parts and components segment, the turnover increased
by 22.4% to approximately HK$418.2 million as compared with 2020.
If excluded the above-mentioned unrealised fair value gain of $10.8
million (2020: HK$25.5 million) on forward currency contracts, the
segment profit had increased to approximately HK$63.6 million (2020:
HK$54.5 million). The improvement was mainly attributable to the rise
in sales order from customers, but partly offset by the rise in material
price and absence of waiver of social security contribution granted in
2020 as discussed above.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The gross profit margin of the Group in 2021 had decreased by
5.5% to 25.5% as compared with 2020 with the reasons discussed
above. The selling and distribution costs slightly decreased by 4.3%
to approximately HK$24.6 million, while the administrative and other
expenses decreased by 14.7% to approximately HK$28.6 million mainly
caused by the drop in exchange loss as compared with 2020. The
financial costs slightly decreased by HK$0.1 million to approximately
HK$0.4 million due to the drop of market interest rate in 2021.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted
to approximately HK$418.2 million, representing an increase of 22.4%
from the previous year. Overall gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$106.7 million, representing an increase of 0.9% from the previous
year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$63.3 million (2020: HK$66.9 million).

Basic earnings for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
HK23.71 cents (2020: HK25.06 cents) per share.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporation
that pays close attention to conserving natural resources. We strive
to minimize our environmental impact by saving electricity and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. We also
require factories operate in compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules and possess all necessary permission and approval
from the relevant Chinese regulators. Emails and electronic messages
have replaced letters for most formal and informal communications,
both externally and internally. Further details are set out in the
environmental, social and governance report which will be published
on the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s and the Company’s
websites.
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Report of the Directors

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange.
Our establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant
laws and regulations in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Bermuda.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, we have complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Bermuda.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures that all staff are reasonably
remunerated and it continues to improve and review and update
regularly on its policies for remuneration and benefits, training,
occupational health and safety. The Group maintains a good
relationship with its customers. Customers are encouraged to make
recommendations with the aim of improving products quality. The
Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a fair
and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,
commercial, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial budget
at the end of each financial year based on their knowledge to the
external environments and a number of forecasts and estimates. Given
the change of unforeseeable external environments in the industry, the
Group is facing significant strategic risks on its capital expenditures
and working capital requirements when changing the strategic plans
to adopt the unexpected changes of external environments.

Commercial risks

The Group is facing keen competition in the market. To maintain
the Group's competitiveness, the management uses cost leadership
strategy as well as diversifying its business strategy to tackle other
competitors.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)
Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure that
the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting
from fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance
matters, are adequately managed.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 33 to consolidated
financial statements heading “Financial risk management objectives
and policies”.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 152. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options
during the year are set out in notes 25 and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, before proposed dividend, calculated in accordance with
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$31,032,312
(2020: HK$28,297,210) of which the payment of HK8.0 cents per
ordinary share was recommenced as final dividend for the year (2020:
HK7.5 cents). During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
declared and paid interim dividend HK4 cents per ordinary share for the
year and paid final dividend HK7.5 cents per ordinary share for 2020.
In addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount
of HK$50,856,881 (2020: HK$50,856,881) may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAIJOR SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the five largest customers accounted
for 64.7% of the total sales of the Group for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 44.6%. Purchases from
the five largest suppliers accounted for 45.0% of the total purchases
of the Group for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 19.2%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors

Lai Pei Wor
Chan Yau Wah

Independent non-executive directors

Kung Fan Cheong
Mak Kwai Wing
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Messrs. Chan Yau Wah and Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph shall
retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the next forthcoming annual general meeting.

Messrs. Kung Fan Cheong, Mak Kwai Wing and Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph,
the independent non-executive directors, are appointed for a period
of two years. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Messrs. Kung Fan Cheong, Mak Kwai Wing and
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph and as at the date of this report still considers
them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 32 to 34 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2021, and the contract can be terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than six months’ nor more than seven months’
prior notice in writing.

Apart from foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
next forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board of the
Company with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

After consideration, the directors are of the opinion that no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significant in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company’s subsidiary was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

EQUITY - LINKED AGREEMENT

2012 share option scheme was adopted for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees of the
Company. No share options were granted, forfeited, cancelled or
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2021. Further details of
the share option scheme are disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the directors in the share
capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were
as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EEERA

Report of the Directors

%%mﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ&ﬁZ%éﬁﬁ

=)

MN-E-—F+-A=+—H BEEHL
HAE R A ([ B5 R EE KO ]) F352(6 2 #
EMGEEZ BT RRESRIEIZE
SFRMEAARERBR  EFNAQA
S EBB AR (EE RFESRBEEMIEXV
) Z B =T

ERAEBRZRE :

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FisRHEE - SORESMEE

Percentage of

Directly Founder of a the Company’s
beneficially discretionary issued share
owned trust Total capital
EHEEZ EARAREET
Name of director EEH R HEEESR AIHA e s gripA= s
Lai Pei Wor FEIEAN 33,438,000 *97,242,000 130,680,000 48.94
Chan Yau Wah PR 20,000 - 20,000 0.00
33,458,000 97,242,000 130,700,000 48.94

Note: MEsE -

* Details of Mr. Lai Pei Wor's interests are set out in the section headed
“Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the share
option scheme disclosures in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any director or their respective spouse or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIALSHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to director or chief
executives of the Company, the following persons or corporations
(other than directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
interests and short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
were as follows:

Long positions:

EERERONES ZEF

B Bt BRI RARRE RO 2 s &
MR I REGEMBRRME26ME 32
BEEEIN - NRBRAEE NEMREER
ERTENEFARES A ZEBIRKEF
FRFEWEAR R R Z B HEFFMEUS a8
2R MEFTETEEMZFEN A
NAHEEAME AR R FARESEITL
ER R BEERANMEMEMEABR
ERHLEER -

TERRREMALTRES REE
Ry zEZRER

R-ZE-_—F+-A=+—H " BARQFE
ERTBTHRAEMRAM > THALHEE
(WHFARREFTHEIETHABR)RARE
Z Bty RARRIR ) R A R IR R S B &
PIZE336IRARHENECMMANEARE
ZREmNMORRIAT

RE:

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE - SOREREE

Percentage

Through of the

Directly spouse or Company’s

beneficially minor Beneficiary issued

owned children of a trust Total  share capital

EALT

E# [T BRITRA

Name k] EREEA AREFZ  ERZEHA @t Bt

Celaya (PTC) Limited (Note @) Celaya (PTC) Limited (Fif3Fa) - - 97,242,000 97,242,000 36.42

Trident Corporate Services Trident Corporate Services - - 97,242,000 97,242,000 36.42
(B.V.L.) Limited (Note b) (B.V) Limited (Fit5Eb)

Lai Yiu Chun (Note ¢) wBEE (Mo 2,298,000 21,450,000 - 23,748,000 8.89

Lam Lin Chu (Note ¢) EM (o) 22,434,000 1,314,000 - 23,748,000 8.89
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SUBSTANTIALSHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(a) Celaya (PTC) Limited holds 97,242,000 shares in its capacity as trustee of The
Lai Family Unit Trust, of which all units are held by Trident Corporate Services
(B.V.I.) Limited in its capacity as trustee of The Lai Family Trust, a discretionary
trust of which the issue of Mr. Lai Pei Wor is discretionary objects.

(b)  The shares referred to herein relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (a) above.

(c)  Ms. Lam Lin Chu is the wife of Mr. Lai Yiu Chun, who is a brother of Mr. Lai
Pei Wor. Both Ms. Lam Lin Chu and Mr. Lai Yiu Chun are declaring interests
in the same parcel of shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year, which constitute exempted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under the Main Board Listing
Rules, are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

No permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year, or is
in force at the date of this report, for the benefit of a then director
or a director of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or a then director or a director of its subsidiary (if made
by the Company). The Company has arranged appropriate directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers
of the Group.

AUDITORS

Mazars CPA Limited will retire as auditor of the Company at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and a resolution
for their reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at such annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lai Pei Wor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of K & P International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K & P
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 151, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements"” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

REEEE

RRETFERERERMNEXHE - RA
HBAMGANBRERNEAR/SERZNS
H o R EEHERRMIETERE SV ER
REHEAERBRERE MEMISHRES
HIEHEBYNER - RPIEEE TEFEER
AREPINREEENHERESFFE -

these matters. We have determined the matter described below to
be the key audit matter to be communicated in our auditor’s report.

Key Audit Matter
BREETEE

Valuation of land and buildings

T REFZ1EE

Refer to note 13 to the consolidated financial statements
FERG A RN 13

As at 31 December 2021, land and buildings held by
the Group were stated at fair value of HK$144,823,000.
Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management to determine the fair value of the land
and buildings, including the determination of valuation
techniques and the selection of different inputs in
the models. Management has engaged independent
professionally qualified valuer (the “Valuer”) whose
work has been relied on in the estimation of the fair
value of the land and buildings. Therefore, the valuation
is considered as a key audit matter because of the
significance of the judgement and amounts involved.
RZZEZ—F+ZA=1+—8 ' EEBFAzLtHKRE
FIAAFEEIERH144,823,00087T - EEERIELE
ANbat KA BEEEEGEREMEETR B AR
ZERANEEN T REF 2 ATFEE - EEEDINE
BYAEREXMEM([EER]) - WERETER
ST REFZATEME - Bt - HEBRAFTSH 2 E
NEBERNEMERAERESEE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMNETNAEERRETSE

Our key audit procedures over valuation of land and
buildings included:
B L R FEEMELNBERETEF 21

— Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer.
B ERD A BT - se I REBIE -

— Assessing the appropriateness of the work of the
Valuer by making enquiries and considering the
relevance and reasonableness of key assumptions and
methods used, and the relevance and accuracy of the
source data used.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the 2021 annual report of the Company but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 March 2022

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Hiu Fun

Practising Certificate number: P05709
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-ZT-_—F+-_A=t—RAILFE
Year ended 31 December 2021
2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-TF
Notes HKS$ HK$
B 5E BT BT
REVENUE A 5 418,202,483 341,758,426
Cost of sales SHE R AR (311,458,174) (235,916,193)
Gross profit EF 106,744,309 105,842,233
Other income and gains H i W A B iz 5 3,518,772 2,998,382
Fair value gain on financial RAFEESAEGRERZ
asset at fair value through SRIEEAFEERE
profit or loss 15 10,760,890 25,460,232
Realised gain on financial asset at R AFEBETABRERZ
fair value through profit or loss CREEDZH K= 15 5,267,241 3,044,252
Selling and distribution costs BHE SRASSHAAR (24,648,354) (25,757,253)
Administrative and other expenses 1T E b & (28,589,894) (33,518,060)
Finance costs A B AN 6 (422,390) (461,215)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R A % F 7 72,630,574 77,608,571
Income tax expense FrSHif 10 (9,333,041) (10,698,706)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AATEBAFGEREE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS e Al
OF THE COMPANY 63,297,533 66,909,865
EARNINGS PER SHARE RATREEAEER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS ZF|
OF THE COMPANY
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — ER R (Bl 12 23.71 25.06
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
—EB-—F R EF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR IREERF 63,297,533 66,909,865
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HpZEUEA
Items that will not be reclassified BrEEHsEZEZ AR
to profit or loss: ZIEH :
Surplus/(deficit) arising from revaluation T REFZEBAR (B
of land and buildings #8) 8,840,057 (2,303,582)
Income tax effect Fristis & (1,798,374) 348,366
7,041,683 (1,955,216)
Items that may be reclassified HETNEHIEZER
subsequently to profit or loss: ABRZER :
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEBREEZ
foreign operations PE X =58 4,720,869 11,148,763
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BREAESNEEHMEE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX WA 11,762,552 9,193,547
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BATEBAFGEEE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 2HEIWAELE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 75,060,085 76,103,412
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e BB ARRE
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R—F—_—+-A=t+—H
At 31 December 2021

2021 2020
—EB-—fF TR TF
Notes HKS$ HK$
B 5E BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B Rk 13 211,454,734 209,271,544
Financial assets at fair value BAFEEFABREZ
through profit or loss STREE 15 1,750,519 10,287,424
Total non-current assets IEREN B EMEGT 213,205,253 219,558,968
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Financial asset at fair value BAFEEGABRERZ
through profit or loss PREE 15 19,297,795 15,852,808
Inventories =& 16 87,316,908 63,641,315
Prepayments, deposits and other TE IR - i2e REAE
receivables &0 17 9,730,041 8,793,822
Trade receivables JEUBRIA 18 107,113,976 93,102,825
Bank balances and cash RITEBEIR S 19 94,352,977 85,709,850
Tax recoverable EIEE 32,925 5,441
Total current assets MENE EBET 317,844,622 267,106,061
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables JEFERIA 20 45,681,821 52,030,114
Accrued liabilities and other e B EREMENFIE
payables 21 42,069,606 41,303,870
Interest-bearing bank and other BRI T R E A
borrowings 22 18,792,000 11,345,750
Lease liabilities HEARE 23 124,128 819,027
Tax payables FE ST IE 3,187,519 5,998,158
Total current liabilities mEBEEG 109,855,074 111,496,919
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEBEEFE 207,989,548 155,609,142
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBER
LIABILITIES 421,194,801 375,168,110

BRERERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

R-ZB-—%+-A=+—H
At 31 December 2021

2021 2020
—EB-—F R EF
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5E BT BT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FnBEME
Lease liabilities HEBRE 23 - 126,216
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 24 26,446,406 24,648,032
Total non-current liabilities IEmE B EEET 26,446,406 24,774,248
Net assets BEFHE 394,748,395 350,393,862

EQUITY s

Share capital i &N 25 26,700,480 26,700,480
Reserves Tt 27(a) 368,047,915 323,693,382
Total equity R 394,748,395 350,393,862

These consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 151 were  $53B &151BEHEHEATBHRERE D
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 —ZE-—F=ZA-+=-AESFeELRK
March 2022 and signed on its behalf by: PR - WH NI ALTRERESE

Lai Pei Wor Chan Yau Wah
FEEZA PR E
Director Director

o EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

Share Asset  Exchange
Share  premium Contributed revaluation fluctuation  Retained  Proposed Total
capital  account surplus reserve reserve profits  dividends equity
(3 EX
R ROEEE AABR  EMRE  RBRE REEN BERE  BRAE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT A7
At 1 January 2021 e s R 26,700,480 *50,856,881  *660,651 *89,162,400 *4,634,830 *158,353,260 * 20,025,360 350,393,862
Profit for the year NEERF - - - - - 63,297,533 - 63,297,533
Other comprehensive income REFEMRERA :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BERNERRES
translation of foreign operations LERER - - - - 4,720,869 - - 4,720,869
Surplus arising from revaluation of AT RIEF
land and buildings, net of tax LEBRH - - - 7,041,683 - - - 7,041,683
Total comprehensive income REERANNES
for the year - - - 7,041,683 4720869 63,297,533 - 75,060,085
Transaction with owners: HEFAETZRS
2020 final dividend paid TRZEZRERERE
(note 11) (Rtit11) - - - - - - (20,025,360) (20,025,360)
2021 interim dividend paid TR -FERE
(note 11) (R - - - - - (10,680,192) - (10,680,192)
2021 final dividend proposed B 3 -ERERE
(note 11) (Kit1) - - - - - (21,360,384) 21,360,384 -
Total transaction with owners HEEARTRHEE - - - - - (32,040,576) 1,335,024 (30,705,552)
At 31 December 2021 RZB--F+ZF=1-H 26700480 *50,856,881  *660,651 *96,204,083 *9,355,699 *189,610,217 *21,360,384 394,748,395

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of & RV BERARP CELEREBEREFPFES
HK$368,047,915 (2020: HK$323,693,382) in the consolidated statement of i A 7 15368,047,9158 T( = T =T F :
financial position. 323,693,382/ )°
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

Share Asset  Exchange
Share  premium  Contributed ~ revaluation  fluctuation ~ Retained ~ Proposed Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve profits ~dividends equity
BE Ei
BE ROEER  AARB  ERGE  RIRE  RREN  BERe EaLE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK§
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2020 RZF-TF-F-H 26,700,480 *50,856,881  *660,651 *91,117,616 *(6,513,933)*118,143,875 *5,340,096 286,305,666
Profit for the year KEER - - - - - 66,909,865 - 66,909,865
Other comprehensive (loss)income  AEEEM2E(FR),/ WA :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BERNERRES
translation of foreign operations LERER - - - - 11,148,763 - - 11,148,763
Deficit arising from revaluation of BB T RET
land and buildings, net of tax JELER - - - (1,955,216) - - - (1,955,.216)
Total comprehensive (loss)income  AEE2E(ER) /WA EE
for the year - - - (1,955216) 11,148,763 66,909,865 - 76,103,412
Transaction with owners: HEFAETZR5
2019 final dividend paid INZB-NERIRE
(note 11) (1) - - - - - - (5340,09) (5,340,09)
2020 interim dividend paid THZEZSFPERE
(note 11) (KrzE1) - - - - - (6,675,120 - (6,675,120
2020 final dividend proposed B T TERERE
(note 11) (Rzt11) - - - - - (20,025,360) 20,025,360 -
Total transaction with owners HEEANETIRHEE - - - - - (26,700,480) 14,685,264 (12,015216)
At 31 December 2020 RIB-FE+-A=+—H 26700480 *50,856,881  *660,651 *89,162,400 *4,634830 *158,353,260 * 20,025,360 350,393,862
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HERERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

T-—F =+—RAIFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-TF
Notes HK$ HK$
B aE &I BIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING &E&FB2HERA
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax Rt A& A 72,630,574 77,608,571
Adjustments for: EEEES
Finance costs B R AN 6 422,390 461,215
Bank interest income SRITH EULA (1,538,019) (761,648)
Depreciation of property, TE-—WE -  BER
plant and equipment RE(BRERAEEE
(excluding right-of-use assets) 4M) 9,592,264 8,544,249
Depreciation of right-of-use TE—REEE
assets 4,024,414 4,047,748
Fair value gain on financial asset BATFEEAER
at fair value through profit or RZemBEENT
loss BEKZE (10,760,890) (25,460,232)
Provision of loss allowance on FEU R TER B
trade receivables 30,500 =
Gain on disposal of items HEME - BE &
of property, plant and w2 W - FEE
equipment, net (73,690) (95,454)
74,327,543 64,344,449
Decrease in financial asset at fair BAFEEFABRERZ
value through profit or loss TREEZMD 15,852,808 1,845,132
Increase in inventories FEZEM (24,536,620) (9,361,768)
Increase in prepayments, deposits  TENZIE ~ 7 MEAME
and other receivables WORIE 2 18 N (770,425) (2,398,904)
Increase in trade receivables FEUS AR T8 2 2 1N (14,149,027) (20,392,798)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade FEFTBRIEZ CRLA),/$56 N
payables (5,454,080) 17,621,849
Increase in accrued liabilities and FEFTBEREMmMERNFIR
other payables sl 1,145,703 8,460,583
Cash generated from operations REHEBEX 2 RE 46,415,902 60,118,543
Interest received EYFI & 1,538,019 761,648
Interest paid EfFIE (393,177) (378,760
Interest element on lease liabilities A& & &2 F| 535D (29,213) (82,455
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBFEH (11,551,284) (9,307,323
Overseas taxes paid EAEINEIE (580,493) (791,251
Net cash flows from operating KEFEB2HERMA
activities — page 60 FEE— %608 35,399,754 50,320,402
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (ontinued)

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
—B—fF —E_THF
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt 5 BT I
Net cash flows from operating KEEB RS R
activities — page 59 FE— 598 35,399,754 50,320,402
CASH FLOWS USED IN REFBRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in time deposits with 8B =1 A I8 B 17 3K
maturity over three months 2300 (25,488,893) (17,116,430)
Purchases of items of property, BEYE - WEREE
plant and equipment (4,030,465) (2,553,236)
Proceeds from disposal of items of — HEWE  BE MR E
property, plant and equipment Fr{S 5008 200,000 151,200
Net cash flows used in investing WEEB 2B LR
activities (29,319,358) (19,518,466)
CASH FLOWS USED IN METBZRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid EARRE 28 (30,705,552) (12,015,216)
New unsecured revolving term MEREEREHER
loans/trust receipt loans SR E R 28 54,584,643 34,011,318
Repayment of unsecured revolving  1B&E EEMEREAHE
term loans/trust receipt loans A EFRBIEER 28 (47,138,393) (34,706,444)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAR 28 (814,714) (1,454,008)
Net cash flows used in financing B EEE) 2SN F R
activities (24,074,016) (14,164,350)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE REeRBEELEEEEZ
IN CASH AND CASH (RA),/ 18 F 58
EQUIVALENTS (17,993,620) 16,637,586
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzRekHAEE
beginning of year HH 45,253,420 28,165,394
Effect of foreign exchange rate MEREE) 2 B - HE
changes, net 1,147,854 450,440
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HFH&ZHERELEE
AT END OF YEAR IHE 19 28,407,654 45,253,420
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

K & P International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its registered
office is located at Units 2304-06, 23rd Floor, Riley House, 88
Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) were manufacture and
sale of precision parts and components (comprising keypads,
synthetic rubber and plastic components and parts).

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for land and buildings and financial
assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, which have
been measured at revalued amount and fair value respectively.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2020 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year as set out in note 2.2 to the
consolidated financial statements. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 2.4
to the consolidated financial statements.

2.1

BE-ZT-_—F+-_A=t—RAILFE
Year ended 31 December 2021
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 REEEE)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as that of the Company using consistent
accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest determined at the date
when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests at the date when control is lost. The
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the parent had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or
to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, joint venture or others as appropriate from the date
when control is lost.
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16 — Phase 2

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16:
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result
of the interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The
amendments complement those issued in November 2019 and
relate to:

e changes to contractual cash flows — a company will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of
financial instruments for changes required by the Reform,
but will instead update the effective interest rate to
reflect the change to the alternative benchmark rate;

e hedge accounting — a company will not have to
discontinue its hedge accounting solely because it makes
changes required by the Reform, if the hedge meets other
hedge accounting criteria; and

e disclosures — a company will be required to disclose
information about new risks arising from the reform and
how it manages the transition to alternative benchmark
rates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

22 S BEREBKBEZ2E

REE HIRER AT EAE B AER 2 3
A1/ BRI 2 BB HE LR o

EB G ERE39 FRELENE —
% BEMBER  FEREE
SAERZEL 7
OR 1658 2 1E5]

EB S XERFE39% - BEUBR
EXERFEL 7 9ORI165E 2 1EE] ¢
FIREENE -F _BR

A EERT AR RN R EENE ([E )
MEH AR UEHREEFRRBEN X
HEERAGEFEVHREZHE - ZF
EBATHR —_F—NF+— AR 2EF]
TR NRER

. AHBEREZBL-AABA
REME B2 B YKL ERR S
EeRIAZEEE MEEH
BRI RBRE R EAF|E
25

nE

o HIMPEFTRE - RARMEHRRE
Ht¥h@st3%  MEEHA
EREFLRERER2EEM
RIEEEREETRE &

s BE-QRABKELEEAMN

PEE 2R A K E g R
BREEREENERZEH -

ERT AR A M TSR W AL

BRERERERAT
B s




meEMBHmRME®

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/revised
HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year, which
the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKFRS 16  Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021
Amendments to HKAS 16  Proceeds before Intended Use ?

Amendments to HKAS 37  Cost of Fulfilling a Contract ?

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework 2

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle 2
to HKFRSs
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current 3
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies 3

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates 3

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction 3

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 3
Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17

and HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture 4

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
4 The effective date to be determined

The directors are in the process of assessing the possible
impact on the future adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs, but
are not yet in a position to reasonably estimate their impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which is
presented within these notes, an investment in subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying amount of
the investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on an
individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable amount.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the

Group.

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of the parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSTHHERME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued) BEAL(E)
(b)  (continued) (b) (#&)
(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEEBEAERE=F2
party. BERE o
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (ivy —EAERBAE=FEEZA
other entity is an associate of the third entity. B ME—ERBAEZSE

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v) A aﬁ”ﬁ$’§@iﬁﬁi$§%
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity BEEHEEs EEREERN
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a ek 2 BE B 2 =@ AET &l o f
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to AEBAREERZE - M
the Group. R E B A B TR A fE

REEERA -

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) BEEEERI )BT AL
person identified in (a). il sk R

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (vii) E’\( YI)BFTI A LRI ¥ ZE
over the entity or is a member of the key management ﬁij{%%j} NEZE S
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). (1ZH,< BERINAE)ZEE

ERELHKE -

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (vii) ZEBIZEBEEE 2
part, provides key management personnel services to R N A=NEIIEPAN- SN
the Group or to the parent of the Group. EECERRREFETE

ABE R °
Close members of the family of a person are those family AT 2R AR pe iR TaH B R T
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced REBGZEZATHIIZALTEEZZ
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include: EREKBILBIE
(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (@) ZALZ FREEBKERZMY:
(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and (b) ZALTZEBIREEHZ TR
54
(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner. (0 ZATHZATZEBIRER
H2RE -
In the definition of a related party, an associate includes EREATHES @ B2 N0 e iEx
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes ZHEBAR  MEZECEAFEZAEZD

subsidiaries of the joint venture. *KB AR ©
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the year in which they are incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciation.

Land and buildings are stated at revalued amount, being the
fair value at the date of valuation less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are performed
frequently to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset
does not differ materially from its carrying amount. Changes
in the values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. Decrease in
valuation are first offset against increase on earlier valuations
in respect of the same asset and are thereafter charged to
profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged
and thereafter to revaluation reserve.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life.
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 2% t0 2.7%
Land lease premium 2.7%
Office premises 33.33%
Leasehold improvements 2.5% to 30%
Plant and machinery 10% to 25%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10% to 30%
Motor vehicles 20% to 25%
Moulds 20% to 33.33%

——F+ZA=t—RILFE
Year ended 31 December 2021
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHERBE (B

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. On disposal of
a revaluated asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, except for
leasehold land and buildings, which comprises:

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received,;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease transfers
ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of
the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group will exercise a purchase option — in which case
depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of the
underlying asset).

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHERBE (B

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

Right-of-use asset related to leasehold land and buildings
where the Group is the registered owner of the leasehold
interest are carried at revalued amount, details of which is set
out under property, plant and equipment paragraph above.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise the following payments for the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at
the commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

() amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and
by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from a
change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount
rate when there is a change in the residual value guarantee,
the in-substance fixed lease payments or the future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate (other
than floating interest rate). In case of a change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in floating interest rates, the
Group remeasures the lease liability using a revised discount
rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of
the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount
of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if:

(@) the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, at the effective date of the lease modification.

(a) the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

F_—Ft+-A=t—HAILFE
Year ended 31 December 2021
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHERBE (B

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

(b) the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

(c) the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate
over the revised lease term.

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of the
lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full termination
of the lease and recognising any gain or loss relating to
the partial or full termination of the lease in profit or loss.

(e) for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis, except for financial
assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL") which are accounted for on the settlement date
basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain control
of the financial asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and derecognition (continued)

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade receivables are
initially measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“Mandatory
FVOCI™); (iii) equity investment measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”); or (iv)
measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent
to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing them, in which case all affected
financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first
annual reporting period following the change in the business
model.

F_—Ft+-A=t—HAILFE
Year ended 31 December 2021
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERETHEBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued) ERMIEAE)
Financial assets (continued) THEEE)
Classification and measurement (continued) DEERETE (&)
1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost 1) BEBEAAGIEZ 2 EE

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets EERMEERSS NHMEKRER

both of the following conditions and is not designated as I R I8 FE A IRFVPL + Rl 12 8 55 K

at FVPL: REHE -

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective is () HEABWEBERXENER
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual BLRmMEENREA LIRS
cash flows; and mE Rk

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to (i) EEXKZINREEEPRESE
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and HemeE aHLReR=E
interest on the principal amount outstanding. BERENAEEXRE ZFE

AN &

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently REBHEK A ENESREERE

measured using the effective interest method and are KAERMNEEGE - WATR

subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from B BRE KRIEEREHER
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation BEEANKEREBERNERRRE
process are recognised in profit or loss. )

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include AEEBZBHEKATENEHE

bank balances and cash, trade receivables and deposits EBEBETESLAIES  EBUWE

and other receivables. I8 R ize R HAtb FE W RIA o

2) Financial assets at FVPL 2) BFVPLZ £ EE
These investments include financial assets that are not ZE5 B BRI IR IR S A AR Bk
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including financial FVOCIETENSRIEE - BIEF1E
assets held for trading, financial assets designated B E MR B X TER S E HFVPL
upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial assets EZEMEE  UAMEBUB
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement HREERIFEIFHEE S U2 KA
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies REZHEFELANSHEE WU
and financial assets that are otherwise required to be NEBEERANFEEFABEN SR

measured at FVPL. They are carried at fair value, with any BE - EMRAFEEINNE T

resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss, which A EERN R MEEBREZ

does not include any dividend or interest earned on the IRMER - HTBEemE EHk

financial assets. B AR AR B SR B e
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXREFTHERE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued) E@MITRE)
Financial assets (continued) TEEEE)
Classification and measurement (continued) DEERETE (&)
2) Financial assets at FVPL (continued) 2) KBFVPLZ Z @& E (&)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is: HemEESBAFIEES :

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in () WEAZEZEBENAREH
the near term; WHE ;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments iy BREREEZE &<
that are managed together and for which there is TEAEZ 2 WER
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term MHATE B R ERRE R E
profit-taking on initial recognition; or MEBEBRER 2 FE 8

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee (i) BRIEFEIERE LIk IEIE
contract or not a designated and effective hedging ERERERTEZTAT
instrument. A -

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at 5% 7 $8 2 )5 B ok BR 28R D 2 1

FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces REEFEZEENBENBERE

a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would WaEsEEMEEZ T — B2

otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or g R MeMEERVILHER

recognising the gains or losses on them on different 46 7€ R IRFVPL ©

bases.

The Group’s financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL N E g FlHRFVPLET E M 2 B E

include club membership and forward currency contracts. EfEgMefrEEEaR -

Impairment of financial assets and other items cHEEREMIEL HE

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses REBHER IR NN ENEREE
("ECL") on financial assets that are measured at amortised JEHEEEE([TBREEEE ) EIE
cost. Except for the specific treatments as detailed below, at B 5 o BRUA NEFRIBE IR 2 sFalioh » AE
each reporting date, the Group measures a loss allowance for HREBH  WMZEMEERSBAERE
a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the FEERB AR A AEBRBERE
credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly HEEEBENSET=cREENSE
since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset B - WemEECERRE 8N ER
has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the I AR EF - AEBRBSEN+ =
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at fAESEEFENEETEZEmE
an amount equal to 12-month ECL. EERVESIEHE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHERBE (B

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of
the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to
an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on
a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(iii) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors
(vi) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since
initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss allowance
are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the financial instrument, except in the case of Mandatory
FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial
instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group); or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. In particular, the following information is taken into
account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

24 EXSTHHERME (&)

SRMIAE)
EHMEEREMIEEBE ()

EXEE

AEBERRATERRABEERRE
EEMMEBRENEMN  DEBER
BRETME R TANAERA THIER
AEBEFREXZBRLOREESHS
B

() WEPELKEREINBRIENE
PR - EHBATKAIREREE
RA(BREAKE) BB (TE
BAREEFANIMAER): K

(i) HTERWHRE -

TR EXDHT - AEERRECREE
BHIEB N T RE - BIBEEEDN B
FREEEEEMAERBEENBRIER
RENSEEREHN -

AHE1E B R R R E L7t

R RTAEHER LTS BN
RIEEE LA - ARERLHIAR
4 EMBEZBORRESHTAR
BRI E B 2 B OB L -
AP AR EE B AR TMAREY
EEREMAR - DIEELARREA
TEBIB R A TR A 0B MR 1
B - BTSSR EEEATE
CE

e BHBARIHAREEERNDHK
PSR

BRERERERAT
B s




e ERRM T

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHERBE (B

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (continued)

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have or may have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet
its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:
(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

As detailed in note 33(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, other receivables are determined to have low
credit risk.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies the
practical expedient not to account for the significant financing
components, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data about
the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHERBE (B

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group expects no significant recovery from the
amount written off. However, financial assets that are written
off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking into
account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and lease
liabilities. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting
would be insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (eontinued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion
of manufacturing overheads. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business less
any estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period of the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been generally within three months of maturity at acquisition,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For classification in the consolidated statements of financial
position, bank balances and cash represent assets similar in
nature to cash and which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHERBE (B

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess whether
there is any indication that its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets may be impaired or impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest group
of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. cash-
generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as
an expense immediately, except where the relevant asset is
carried at revalued amount in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease in accordance to the
accounting policy relevant to that asset.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately, except where the relevant asset
is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase in
accordance to the accounting policy relevant to the asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Expenditures for which a provision has been recognised are
charged against the related provision in the year in which the
expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount provided is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Group operates and generated taxable
income.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHERBE (B

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods

The nature of the goods provided by the Group comprises
sales of precision parts and components.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods promised
in a contract with a customer and identifies as a performance
obligation each promise to transfer to the customer either:

(a) a good (or a bundle of goods) that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods that are substantially the
same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the
customer.

A good that is promised to a customer is distinct if both of the
following criteria are met:

(@) the customer can benefit from the good either on its own
or together with other resources that are readily available
to the customer (i.e. the good is capable of being
distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good to the customer
is separately identifiable from other promises in the
contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the good is distinct
within the context of the contract).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHERBE (B

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good (i.e.
an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as)
the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good over time and,
therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

(b) the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset (for
example, work in progress) that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as legal
title, physical possession, right to payment, significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer acceptance.

Sales of precision parts and components are recognised at a
point in time at which the customer obtains the control of the
promised asset, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers and the title is passed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, the contract is presented as a contract asset, excluding
any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely, if a
customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before
the Group transfers a good to the customer, the contract is
presented as a contract liability when the payment is made
or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group’s right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
Contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts
are not presented on a net basis.

For sales of precision parts and components, it is common for
the Group to receive from the customer the whole or some
of the contractual payments when the goods are delivered
(i.e. the timing of revenue recognition for such transactions).
The Group recognises a contract liability until it is recognised
as revenue. During that period, any significant financing
components, if applicable, will be included in the contract
liability and will be expensed as accrued unless the interest
expense is eligible for capitalisation.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHERBE (B

POLICIES (continued)
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits in the consolidated
statement of change in equity, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled, ending on the
date on which the entitlement of relevant employees to the
award is no longer conditional on the satisfaction of any non-
market vesting conditions (“vesting date”). During the vesting
period, the number of share options that is expected to vest
ultimately is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior periods is charged/credited to profit
or loss for the year of review, with a corresponding adjustment
to the reserve within equity.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest because non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been met where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/
or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the
minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair value of the
unmodified award, provided as the original terms of the award
are met. An additional expense, measured as at the date of
modification, is recognised for any modification that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph. Share-based payment transactions
in which the Company grants share options to subsidiaries’
employees are accounted for as an increase in value of
investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position which is eliminated on consolidation.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at fair value of the goods
or services received, except where the fair value cannot be
reliably estimated, in which case they are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair
value is measured at the date the Group obtains the goods or
the counterparty renders the services.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHERBE (B

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings
per share.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
Hong Kong for all of its eligible employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
by entities in the Group at their respective functional currency
spot rates at the date of the transactions first qualifies for
recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the end of the reporting period. All
differences are taken to the consolidated income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined.

The results and financial position of all the group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into Hong
Kong dollars, the presentation currency. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period
and their income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at the average exchange rates. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
of revision and future periods, in case the revision also affects
future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Inventories

The Group does not have a general provisioning policy on
inventories based on ageing given that the inventories are not
subject to frequent wear and tear or frequent technological
changes. However, as a significant portion of the working
capital is devoted to inventories, operational procedures have
been in place to monitor this risk. The Group reviews the
inventory ageing listing on a periodical basis for those aged
inventories. This involves comparison of the carrying value of
the aged inventory items with the respective net realisable
value. The purpose is to ascertain whether allowance is
required to be made in the consolidated financial statements
for any obsolete and slow-moving items. In addition, physical
counts on all inventories are carried out on a periodical basis in
order to determine whether any allowance needs to be made
in respect of obsolete and defective inventories identified.

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Group assesses annually if investment in subsidiaries has
suffered any impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 and
follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 in determining whether
amounts due from these entities are impaired. Details of the
approach are stated in the respective accounting policies.
The assessment requires an estimation of future cash flows,
including expected dividends, from the assets and the selection
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (eontinued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment/right-
of-use assets

Determining an appropriate amount of an impairment requires
an estimation of recoverable amounts of the relevant property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets or the respective
cash generating units (“CGU") to which the property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets belong, which is the
higher of value in use and fair value less cost of disposal. If
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the
recoverable amount shall be estimated for individual asset. If
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the
individual asset, the Group shall determine the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the relevant assets or the
CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. The discount rate represents rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or the CGU for which the future
cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected or there is
a downward revision of future estimated cash flows due to
unfavourable changes in facts and circumstances, an additional
impairment loss may arise. At 31 December 2021 and 2020,
no impairment losses have been recognised for property, plant
and equipment. The carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment were HK$211,454,734 (2020: HK$209,271,544).

Valuation of land and buildings

The Group’s land and buildings included in property, plant
and equipment are stated at their revalued amounts in
the consolidated statement of financial position, which are
assessed annually by management with reference to valuations
performed by independent professionally qualified valuer. In
determining the revalued amounts, the valuer has based on the
method of valuations which involve certain estimates. In relying
on the valuation report, the directors of the Company have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the method of
valuations is reflective of the current market conditions. The
carrying amounts of the land and buildings at 31 December
2021 were HK$144,823,000 (2020: HK$139,946,000).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of financial assets at FVPL

The Group’s financial assets at FVPL have been valued based
on market-observable data to the extent it is available. The
valuation requires the Group to exercise judgement to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
associated with the investment. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group has financial assets at FVPL of HK$21,048,314 (2020:
HK$26,140,232). Details of the techniques and inputs used
in the valuation are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade and other receivables by using various inputs and
assumptions including risk of a default and expected loss rate.
The estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which is
based on the Group’s historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables. Details of the key
assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are set out in
note 33(c) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on its products and has two (2020: two)
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the precision parts and components segment comprises
the manufacture and sale of precision parts and
components comprising keypads, synthetic rubber and
plastic components and parts; and

(b) the corporate and others segment comprises the Group’s
long term investments, together with corporate income
and expense items.

Management, the chief operating decision makers, monitors
the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for
the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment results, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax from continuing operations. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that bank interest income and
finance costs are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the cost of sales and are eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

4, KEIEER(#B)

BE_E_—H+-A=1t—-HLHFE

Precision
parts and Corporate
components and others Total
BEZHMG #ER R H At st
HK$ HK$ HK$
B JTT BT BT
Segment revenue: DERA :
Sales to external customers HINE P HE 418,202,483 - 418,202,483
Reportable segment revenue 7 383R&E U A R UL A
and revenue 418,202,483 - 418,202,483
Segment results: DEEEE 74,418,022 (2,903,077) 71,514,945
Reconciliation: FED
Bank interest income RITHEMA 1,538,019
Finance costs & Ak AN (422,390)
Profit before tax B 75 Al i A 72,630,574
Other segment information: Hfti5E&EH :
Other income and gains H A A R e 1,979,155 1,598 1,980,753
Depreciation of property, plant & — ¥ - M= L&
and equipment (excluding (BREAEEE)
right-of-use assets) (8,691,814) (900,450) (9,592,264)
Depreciation of right-of-use & —(FEHEEE
assets (1,051,590) (2,972,824) (4,024,414)
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of HEME HEREFEZ
items of property, plant and & (EBE) F5E
equipment, net 74,081 (391) 73,690
Surplus on revaluation of land +ith RIEFEEH 7 BeRst
and buildings credited to AE A2 EHRA
other comprehensive income 3,997,233 4,842,824 8,840,057
Lease payments under short- SEHIHERAZEZ
term leases on office THERIE
premises (68,513) (146,712) (215,225)
Provision for loss allowance on & U BR 78 548 B
trade receivables (30,500) - (30,500)
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain,  [E X, (&18), Wz H5E
net (3,101,657) 85,104 (3,016,553)
Capital expenditure =ENGEET (4,028,195) (2,270) (4,030,465)
Fair value gain on financial BAFEETABREREZ
asset at fair value through NEEEKES
profit or loss 10,760,890 - 10,760,890
Realised gain on financial BAVEEFABREZ
asset at fair value through B #IR WS
profit or loss 5,267,241 - 5,267,241
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

4, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RESFEER (E)
Year ended 31 December 2020 BHE—TET-TE+-_A=1+—HILEE
Precision
parts and Corporate
components and others Total
BT 40K E A 4BET
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Segment revenue: DEWA :
Sales to external customers BN FIHE 341,758,426 - 341,758,426
Reportable segment revenue 5 fEdRE WA BRI A
and revenue 341,758,426 = 341,758,426
Segment results: DEEE 79,975,571 (2,667,433) 77,308,138
Reconciliation: GHED -
Bank interest income SRTTH 2 WA 761,648
Finance costs & Al 2N (461,215)
Profit before tax B B B E A 77,608,571
Other segment information: Hftt2EEH :
Other income and gains b= PN 1,968,811 267,923 2,236,734
Depreciation of property, plant #& —¥% - & L& E
and equipment (excluding (BREAEEE)
right-of-use assets) (7,785,153) (759,096) (8,544,249)
Depreciation of right-of-use e —FHREESE
assets (921,821) (3,125,927) (4,047,748)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HEWE - BENRFRBEZ
items of property, plant and (E518),/ Bt %58
equipment, net (55,746) 151,200 95,454
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation +ihREFEEHZ R
of land and buildings (B8t A (H0RR)
credited/(debited) to other Hib2mU A
comprehensive income 373,231 (2,676,813) (2,303,582)
Lease payments under short- SEHIMEEHAZE
term leases on office HEFAE
premises (63,946) (137,712) (201,658)
Lease payments under KEBEEEZHEZFE
low-value asset leases (1,693) - (1,693)
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain, (& (&518) Wz - 588
net (8,170,123) 158,063 (8,012,060)
Capital expenditure BARREY (2,530,886) (22,350) (2,553,236)
Fair value gain on financial AT EBET ABREZ
asset at fair value through NEBEEKRZ
profit or loss 25,460,232 - 25,460,232
Realised gain on financial BATEBET ABREZ
asset at fair value through B W
profit or loss 3,044,252 - 3,044,252
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. REFBERE)

Information about a major customer FEEFER
Revenue of HK$186,592,452 (2020: HK$131,489,938) was AN 4£186,592,4528 L ( —E=F
derived from a single customer of the precision parts and F 131,489,938 7T ) MU A+ Th AR
components segment that contributing over 10% of the BREEREIMELEN—ZBEE - WEHARN
Group’s revenue for the year. SERRAZR10% °
Geographical information 1 BB E #)
(@) Revenue from external customers (a) #IPEFKA
2021 2020
—B-—f T
HK$ HK$
BT PETT
Hong Kong BB 8,538,099 6,038,240
Mainland China PR B A B 31,800,484 29,746,629
Japan and other Asian countries B & HAth g B sk 263,949,761 212,690,043
North America LM 38,484,641 32,936,499
South America B =M 6,970,665 5,834,690
Europe BM 56,328,670 47,520,672
Other countries HAb B 12,130,163 6,991,653
Total revenue A 418,202,483 341,758,426
The revenue information above is based on the LA EW A B REHZ R P B fE b (= &
geographical location of the customers. 5 o
(b) Non-current assets (b) FEENEE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EEF
HK$ HK$
BT SIT
Hong Kong BB 68,677,581 66,933,112
Mainland China HR B K 142,643,582 141,903,385
Other countries HAH= 133,571 435,047

211,454,734 209,271,544

The non-current assets information above is based on the N EFRBEEERIZEERNE
geographical location of assets and excludes the financial wEE S BTAEERAFEE
asset at fair value through profit or loss. FTABREC SREBE o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA - Hftlt AR Wz

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts, during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is

WAEARFERHERmAERIFE
BRENE ST -

AEERA - HAUA R am e D an

as follows: T:
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$ HK$
&I BT
Revenue from contracts with BB REEAE155FEERR
customers within the scope of BEFEHZBA :
HKFRS 15:
Sale of goods EmiEE 418,202,483 341,758,426
Other income and gains: Hg A R s ¢
Bank interest income RITA B U A 1,538,019 761,648
Tooling charge income BT A 242,314 346,924
Sale of scrap BERHHE 264,827 267,843
Sale of samples BmiHE 1,333,134 1,147,399
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE  WENHEE IS
plant and equipment, net VR EE 73,690 95,454
Incentive received* B S By R * 49,520 272,856
Others Hith 17,268 106,258
3,518,772 2,998,382
Total revenue, other income A - EU AR s
and gains 421,721,255 344,756,808

BRERERERAT
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5. WA - WA RIS (&)

The amount of revenue recognised for the year that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year
is HK$3,209,354 (2020: HK$4,095,901).

* During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group received an
allowance of “Granting Support in Respect of the Unemployment
Insurance to Enterprises for Stabilising Employment” of Renminbi
("RMB") 41,267 (approximately HK$49,520) (2020: RMB211,654,
approximately HK$237,052) from Social Security Bureau and no other
incentives and allowances from Mainland China government (2020:
RMB31,968, approximately HK$35,804).

AEEBRRAZWASBEENENZE
48 1E 43,209,354 T ( —E T4 :
4,095,90178 7T )°

@ BE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—8HLHF
B AEBRESRERKRE —%£1#
REAERBRIFLEBEMA RERY
F41,267 A R (T A R ¥ 1)(4949,520
BN ZZT_ZF : 211,654 AR EH
237,052/ )+ R A A BB AT U B H
fth52E) SRR (=T ZFF : 31,968 A

R¥#4935,804/87T) °
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. MEKAK

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMERERHDTAOT
2021 2020
—E-—F T FF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RAFEARNEEZHITERE

wholly repayable within five years B AE 393,177 378,760
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 23) AEBaEMNE (M:E23) 29,213 82,455
422,390 461,215
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

—A=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBANER

7 5 B B A B AR

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-TF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Staff costs (including directors’ ETRS(BREESHE
remuneration — note 8)f: —HI5E8)*
Wages and salaries Iﬁ& 2 89,206,565 87,551,136
Contributions to retirement benefit RIREFIFH SR>
schemes* 11,114,690 3,485,360
100,321,255 91,036,496
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA 311,458,174 235,916,193
Auditor’s remuneration % EREN B 1,112,603 1,029,639
Depreciation of property, plant and E -  BWEKLEXE
equipment (excluding right-of-use (Br1EAEEE)
assets)* 9,592,264 8,544,249
Depreciation of right-of-use assets* e —FREEE" 4,024,414 4,047,748
Foreign exchange loss, net E W B8 - FRE 3,016,553 8,012,060
Lease payments under short-term leases SHIEEWAERKEZ
on office premises and factories* HE g 215,225 201,658
Lease payments under low-value asset {X{EEE E 2 HE7E"
leases* = 1,693
Provision for loss allowance on JfE Uk BR TR E
trade receivables 30,500 =
Sales commission HERS 4,802,844 6,380,151

The staff cost amounting to HK$78,191,643 (2020: HK$67,544,707),
depreciation amounting to HK$9,881,806 (2020: HK$8,761,892)
and no lease payment to short-term leases on office premises and
factories/low-value asset leases (2020: HK$58,617) for the year are
included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated income statement.
Furthermore, government grant amounting to Singapore Dollar
(“SGD") 73,807 (approximately HK$416,670) was granted from
the Job Support Scheme received from Inland Revenue Authority of
Singapore, to retain employment and combat COVID-19 epidemics,
which was off-set with the staff costs in 2020 while no such
government grant received in 2021.

Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the People’s
Republic of China has announced in 2020 to waive employer
obligations on social security insurance (“SSI"”) contributions during
February 2020 to December 2020 to ease the burden of enterprises
under the impact of COVID-19 while no such exemption for 2021.

$$F2§Il§ﬁ§i%‘ﬁ78191 64378 0(—=
T — T 67,544,707 T ) TE R
9,881,806/ L( = =T 4 : 8,761,892
BIT) &Iﬂ%ﬁm"ﬁﬁw“*&m%/

BEEEECHEREAR(ZE_2F

58,6178 L)ERRBEELAFER
ZIHERAKN]I R B BHBEER
FECOVID-19% 1 + 1 37 10 3% BAT 4 B —
EENERAHE = E’Jﬁk/ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%’

73,807 I3 7T (#)416,67078 78 ) &

ERREE—Z_ZTFENETHX EA_

T —FWERE BT B o

BB P¥ETCOVID-19R B2 2

#=ANREFEAHERMNESREZD

T EERRRCERZZEF

—AZE+-AGHERBREZH#EK R
= —F AR R R R

. th
i
F

BRHEERZERERAR
R -FFR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

8. INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF 8. FHESTEANEHR
DIRECTORS
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules S Mk - L E VNG S a4
and the Companies Ordinance, are as follows: BoEEMeMT :
(a) Director’s emoluments (a) EEME
(i) Independent non-executive directors (i) BUFHTEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors REZ AN TBILIERT
during the year were as follows: EFEMEE
2021 2020
- —E-TF
HK$ HK$
BT PSIT
Kung Fan Cheong LEES 333,936 333,936
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph s 333,936 333,936
Mak Kwai Wing BEE 333,936 333,936
1,001,808 1,001,808
There were no other emoluments payable to the RNEE RN EEN T B IERTT
independent non-executive directors during the year BEEHMME(E T F :
(2020: Nil). /).
(ii) Executive directors (i) BITEE
Contributions
to retirement
Discretionary benefit Other Total
Fees Salaries bonus schemes  allowances remuneration
BINER
e e A HE UL Heth2aE B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
2021 —BC-f
Executive directors: #{7EE :
Lai Pei Wor B - 2,770,040 1,241,244 9,000 10,000 4,030,284
Chan Yau Wah BRE - 858,000 396,000 - 45377 1,299,377
- 3,628,040 1,637,244 9,000 55,377 5,329,661
2020 “T-TE
Executive directors: #{7ES :
Lai Pei Wor B - 2,689,362 827,496 18,000 4,463 3,539,321
Chan Yau Wah B = 800,800 - - 33,685 834,485

- 3,490,162 827,496 18,000 38,148 4,373,806
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF 8.

DIRECTORS (continued)

(b) Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in
favour of the directors of the Company that were entered
into or subsisted during the year (2020: Nil).

(c) Directors’ material interest in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

After consideration, the directors are of the opinion
that no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company or a connected entity of the director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2020:
Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 9.

The five highest paid individuals during the year included two
(2020: two) executive directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining three (2020: three) non-director, highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

RRESENER @)

(b) AESHZHAZER X8
REHM S

ARBRANFREALELT LRI
EUNEE/RaBAZER  £H
FAEMRH(ZE_TF: &) o

() EERX5  ZHIASHZE
R

KEBZ% BEERANEAEER
RAFERNTAER BETE
RRRMEB—HBEBRARRER
ZERRS  THERAHEAEAR
AIEENESCHEETRNER
BEEEREBEZEAER(=F
ZTE )

hAfuBRESHES
AFEERUESHEEBEML(ZE
“EFMOWTESE - FEEIRN
EXHiE8 c BT = (ZT=FF : =
f) &S IHBEFRE 2 HMFR W
™

2021 2020
—EB-—f TR TF
HK$ HK$
&I BT

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits BEARE S 2B REYHE
in kind 3,458,533 3,357,796
Discretionary bonus FIETEAL 1,336,941 923,385
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes R i@ F 5+ 2 36,000 36,000
4,831,474 4,317,181

BRERERERAT
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

10.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) 9. INEBEHEE &)
The remuneration of non-director, highest paid employees is e IEEEREE 2 HMEAB AR
within the following bands: N
Number of individuals
EEAH
2021 2020
—F=— 2 TF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0018 7T % 1,500,000/8 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0018 722,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7L £2,500,00078 7T 1 =
3 3
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no HE T - FhR_ZTE_TF+_A=
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid +T—BIt YEENTAKRELRUSS
individuals and other directors, as an inducement to join or HEENEMESZEMME - (EAR
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. S| EH hn BB AN £ [F 3k A0 PR 12 &Y S B ok i B
In addition, during the years ended 31 December 2021 and HE -RF HE2—_TE-_—FR_T=
2020, no directors waived any of their emoluments. TE+-_A=1+—HIt WESBEWE
ERCIE= 0
INCOME TAX 10. FR8%H

The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime was
signed and gazetted. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of qualifying group
entity are taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million are
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of other group entities in Hong
Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Taxes on assessable profits outside Hong Kong have been
provided on the estimated assessable profits for the year, in
respect of the Group’s operations outside Hong Kong, at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

—E L FRBUEET) (FE75%) &6
BR(MEHIEZR]) 5| AFIE 5 = /AR
FIEERET R TIE - RIBFISHEMRRK
#l - & EBEEEE H2,000,00078 7T
25 M IR T R8.25% R T - 1M B i
2,000,000/ 7t 2 )% A 1§ 12 71 %16.5%
S e PEEFISHERRS 2 5B
Vi F A BB IR 47— TR % 16.5% ik

=i
BB RINE BB RO BURE AT

st RS N WARIE AR EE B HI
REMIBRRIE R FRAVIRES -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

—A=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FRfGH (&)
2021 2020
—E-—& ZE-TF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Current — Hong Kong: NEI—FH -
Charge for the year REFZH 8,923,530 8,046,683
Over provision in prior years TEmmERE (201,529) (14,682)
Current — outside Hong Kong: NER— /AT
Charge for the year REETH 645,541 424,533
Over provision in prior years TR (34,501) (57,828)
Deferred taxation: EIETIE
Origination and reversal of EREERNEERED
temporary difference = 2,300,000
Total tax expense for the year AREEHIEHR 9,333,041 10,698,706

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are operated to

REERANART REAXZ HHE QR
R ) BARE R B BRI AT M A TE R
Kt BT IAR X BB IR S 2 B

the tax expense is as follows: AR
2021 2020
——% T FF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Profit before tax [ H5% A s A 72,630,574 77,608,571
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% I EFERIE16.5% 2 FiI1E
(2020: 16.5%) —E-FF :16.5%) 11,984,045 12,805,414
Tax effect of two-tiered profits tax M 1B T 2R W 4% ol 2 228
rates regime (165,000) (165,000)
Effect of different rates for companies /A B4R & E b 7] A4 = 49
operating in other jurisdictions TRIF R 7 & 220,481 134,136
Income not subject to tax DR Z WA (430,137) (623,676)
Expenses not deductible for tax DRI IE 2 B 2 156,405 80,473
Unrecognised temporary differences RERZERHEER 2,229,035 (1,435,501)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B AR AFER 2 T IBE 18
tax losses (3,578,302) (454,769)
Over provision in prior years EE B (236,030) (72,510)
Tax losses not recognised AR 2 BIAE B 157,966 154,936
Others HAith (1,005,422) 275,203
Tax expense for the year REEREBRAZ 9,333,041 10,698,706

BRHEERZERERAR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

11. DIVIDEND 11. BB
2021 2020
—EC--F —TEF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Attributable to the current year: R FEZ TG :
Proposed final dividend — HK8 cents EEARE — SREERSHEL
(2020: HK7.5 cents) per ordinary —TE-FF  75810)
share 21,360,384 20,025,360
Interim dividend paid — HK4 cents AR ERRR B — T AR S B AR AL
(2020: HK2.5 cents) per ordinary —EFTFE 2 580)
share 10,680,192 6,675,120
32,040,576 26,700,480
Attributable to the previous years, RERREE R TS AFEFERZ G
approved and paid during the year:
Final dividend — HK7.5 cents REARR B — TR AR 7 578l
(2020: HK2 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ=Z4F : 2 Bl) 20,025,360 5,340,096
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the REERBEARPKEBEARRFRIRE
approval of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming BERE FHE - HRIET - IHIRER
annual general meeting. This dividend has not been recognised WMEHRITAREREAE -

as liabilities at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. KRB EBEAEERER

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share
are based on:

FREARIERNDREARDHA
B A B R R A A BTN
BT ERBBE T -

BRERLEERNRIBEA TR

2021 2020
—E-—& —E-TF
HK$ HK$
BT PEIT

Earnings B

Profit attributable to owners RRARER AR RNAR
of the Company used in the basic STESRERNREERT
and diluted earnings per share
calculation:

Shares & 12
Weighted average number of ordinary  ZANFE R 31T 2 INEFH

63,297,533 66,909,865

shares in issue during the year used LR E B AR EZSRER

in the basic and diluted earnings per R ESEZF|
share calculation

As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares, diluted
earnings per share was the same as basic earnings per share in
2021 and 2020.

267,004,800 267,004,800

R LB EESNE AR RF=
—ER_T_TENERELBNES
IEE 2 FAEE o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % - MERRME
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold  Land lease Office Plant and and office Motor
buildings  improvements premium premises  machinery  equipment vehicles Moulds Total
1#HEE B £BR
THRET BERE i HAZ  BERHE  BOERE - RE Eh
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
#n En &R - #n &R B o #n
31 December 2021 Z2--F+ZAZt-H
At 31 December 2020 and RZE-FF+-A=1-Bk
1 January 2021: “5--F-f-R:
Cost or valuation ASRGE 139,946,000 55,252,493 16,196,208 690,609 62,266,693 24,768,750 5,050,399 56,245,942 360,417,094
Accumulated depreciation and SHAERBEER
impairment loss - (25701311)  (5,286,554) (280.256)  (36,226,758)  (22,690,183)  (4,714,546)  (56,245942)  (151,145,550)
Net carrying amount FHFE 139,946,000 29,551,182 10,909,654 410,353 26,039,935 2,078,567 335,853 - 209,271,544
Reconciliation of carrying #E-3--%
amount - year ended T-A=+-AL
31 December 2021 EEEAFEAN
At 1 January 2021 R=2--%-f-A 139,946,000 29,551,182 10,909,654 410,353 26,039,935 2,078,567 335,853 - 209,271,544
Additions hE - 3,699,251 - - 242,064 89,150 - - 4,030,465
Disposals e - - - - (130m0) (3,240) - - (126310)
Depreciation g (5419,883)  (2,480,577) (299,749) (285,658) (4,499,343 (433,680) (197,788) - (13,616,678)
Surplus on revaluation debited to other EfER&EA
comprehensive income Eh2ERA 8,840,057 - - - - - - - 8840057
Exchange realignment B A% 1,456,826 765,300 208,872 (5,989) 583,462 3,220 3,965 - 3,055,656

At 31 December 2021, net

carrying amount 144,823,000 31535156 10,818,777 118,706 22,243,048 1,774,017 142,030 - 21454734
At 31 December 2021: R-E—-&+-A=1-H:

Cost or valuation HASEE 144,823,000 60,096,804 16,496,208 410353 63425158 24,980,841 5,098,242 56,245,942 371,576,548

Accumulated depreciation and ZHHER

impairment loss HEFE - (28561,648)  (5,677,431) (291,647)  (41182,110)  (23,206,824)  (4,956,212)  (56,245,942) (160,121,814)

Net carrying amount REFE 144,823,000 31535156 10,818,777 118,706 22,243,048 1,774,017 142,030 - 1454734
Analysis of cost or valuation at RARFEMTR-E=—F

31 December 2021: +-A=t-R:

At cost A - 60,096,804 16,496,208 41035 63425158 24,980,841 5008242 56245942 226,753,548

At valuation fhfE 144,823,000 - - - - - - - 144,823,000

144,823,000 60,096,804 16,496,208 410353 63425158 24,980,841 5098242 56,245,942 371,576,548
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BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. % - MERRE &
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold Land lease Office Plant and office Motor
buildings  improvements premium premises machinery equipment vehicles Moulds Total
THHE Rl £ER
1iHRET BExE ER BRE  HRREE  BATHRR HE RA &3t
HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT AT BT BT b A BT BT
31 December 2020 ZR-RFTA=T-R
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NET-A=t-Bk
1 January 2020: “TIRE-f-R:
Cost or valuation RAS[EE 144,095,000 52,053,635 15,496,208 996,963 96,492,664 24,790,376 4,916,988 56,245,942 395,087,776
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE - (23,205,059) (4,797,078) (306,354)  (69,580,891)  (22,414,454) (4,264,095 (56,245,942)  (180,813,873)
Net carrying amount KEAE 144,095,000 28,848 576 10,699,130 690,609 26,911,773 2375922 652,893 - 214273903
Reconcilation of carrying H2-3-%%F
amount - year ended TZRA=t+-AL
31 December 2020 ERERSERS
At 1 January 2020 RZE-ZF-f-H 144,095,000 28,848 576 10,699,130 690,609 26,911,773 2315922 652,893 - 214273903
Additions hE = 670,913 = = 1,748,333 133,990 - - 2,553,236
Disposals i3 - - - - (792) (54,954) - - (55,746)
Depreciation it (5350,721)  (1,706,612) (285,282) (278770)  (4,151,144) (488,633) (330,835) - (12,591,997)
Deficit on revaluation debited to EEERNG
other comprehensive income E2ERA (2,303,582) - - - - - - - (2,303,582)
Exchange realignment BN A% 3,505,303 1,738,305 495,806 (1,486) 1,531,765 1228 13,795 - 7,395,730

At 31 December 2020,

net carrying amount 139,946,000 29,551,182 10,909,654 410,353 26,039,935 2,078 567 335,853 - 209,271,544
At 31 December 2020: RZF-RF+-A=+-8:

Cost or valuation RAS[EE 139,946,000 55,252,493 16,196,208 690,609 62,266,693 24,768,750 5,050,399 56245942 360,417,094

Accumulated depreciation and 2iHER

impairment loss HEEE - (25,701311) (5,286,554 (280,25)  (36,226,758)  (22,690,183) (4,714546)  (56,245,942) (151,145,550

Net carrying amount HREFE 139,946,000 29,551,182 10,909,654 410,353 26,039,935 2,078 567 335,853 - 209,271,544
Analysis of cost or valuation RASREMTR B35

at 31 December 2020: tZA=+-R:

At cost A = 55,252,493 16,196,208 690,609 62,266,693 24,768,750 5,050,399 56,245,942 220,471,004

At valuation e 139,946,000 = = - - - - - 139,946,000

139,946,000 55252493 16,196,208 690609 62266693 24,768,750 5050399 56245942 360,417,094

BRHEERZERERAR 109
R -FFR




meEMBHmRME®

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Hz

BE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued at the end of the
reporting period by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professionally qualified valuer. The land and buildings in
Hong Kong were revalued on the basis of market value by
the comparison approach, based on their existing state,
while the buildings in Mainland China were revalued using
the depreciated replacement cost method. No changes were
made in the valuation technique(s) during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020. A surplus arising from revaluation
on the buildings in Mainland China of HK$3,997,233 (2020:
HK$373,231) and surplus of land and buildings in Hong Kong
of HK$4,842,824 (2020: deficit of HK$2,676,813) have been
credited/debited to other comprehensive income.

Had the Group’s land and buildings been carried at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, their carrying amounts would have been included
in the consolidated financial statements at approximately
HK$61,144,000 (2020: HK$62,119,000) with the original

13. W% - BERKRE#)

REB Z T RIEFRREHARAEL
BELBERGEMEGETETHE - &
B REFREBESTANTSEERR
R RIARRE LS » R BIARERIE TR
BNEEENNEER BHE_T=_—
FR-ZE-EF+-_A=+—HIFE
A - ARG ES AL EIE L SR e -
B _E it A B K e 59 48 SR (B 1 EE AR Y
E(H&H3,997,2338B (T F :
373,231 0) kBB L RIEFHEM
EANEGEHRS 842,824 (- —
T F5182,676,813BT)EE AN
BrEAZEUA o

AN [ £ 3 Fo AE 5 AR S Bk AR R 51T
ENRERBEYE  EREEEDF AL
B BHmEF - S FEA61,144,000%
TL(ZZE T4 :62,119,000/87T) ' HIE
& #(H 415,754,0005 7T 537,205,000

currency of HK$15,754,000 and RMB37,205,000 (2020: ARB(ZZT ZZ % : 16,440,000 7T
HK$16,440,000 and RMB38,386,000). 1238,386,000 A REE) ©
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FHEESE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets R EEBREEREEER
by class of underlying assets is as follows: EHFEITAT -
2021 2020
—E-—F T -THF
Notes HK$ HK$
5T BT BT
Leasehold land and buildings EEAREAMEE L
held for own use, carried at REF mEREEH :
valuation, with remaining lease
terms of:
- 12 to 27 years — 12E27$ (i) 68,600,000 66,730,000
Land lease premium T EE (i) 10,818,777 10,909,654
Office premises WAE (iii) 118,706 410,353
Motor vehicle YRE (iv) 20,269 101,344
Plant and machinery R 5 M i 25 (iv) - 2,926,291
Net carrying amount AR R E 79,557,752 81,077,642
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. % - MERZHE &)
(a) Right-of-use assets (continued) (a) EAEEEZ)

No addition of the right-of-use assets was recognised N E N R SRS I 2 5 A

during the year. BE °

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases FERERERNAENRZIE

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: BT
2021 2020

—E-—F ZETF

HK$ HK$
BT BIT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use  (RiBREEELERIEHE FAEEE
assets by class of underlying asset: MITEER :

Leasehold land and buildings HE T REF 2,972,824 3,043,187
Land lease premium THEEER 299,749 285,282
Office premises WRE 285,658 278,770
Motor vehicle Y 81,075 81,075
Plant and machinery e N 2% 385,108 359,434
4,024,414 4,047,748
Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set HEBBEZHBE DM EBEHNELE
out in note 23 of the consolidated financial statements. S EHRERMIEE23 ©
(i) Leasehold land and buildings held for own (i) #EEERAHWHEELHE
use EF

The Group holds a commercial building for its daily
operations. The Group is the registered owner of
the property interest, including the whole or part
of undivided share in the underlying land. Payments
were made upfront to acquire this property interest
from previous registered owners and there are no
ongoing payments to be made under the terms
of the land lease, other than payments based on
rateable values set by the relevant government
authorities. These payments vary from time to
time and are payable to the relevant government
authorities.

AEERE —EREETHE
REEEZH A5ERY
XD (BRI MH T
D EIEB DAV E T L) BB RD
BN MZAEAABA
ERMERE I FREEX
I BRAEBBRARERESR
BEFENFRIAIN - LEL
AREHESRFTEREX
NHEHE - BEBRERER
EMEEAENREASEE
By ] 7 2
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ¥  BERRE®)
(a) EREEEE)
(i) LtHEEEH

(a) Right-of-use assets (continued)

(ii) Land lease premium

The land lease premium represents the interests in
leasehold lands held which are situated in Mainland
China and are held under medium term leases of
50 years with the remaining lease terms of 16 to 27
years.

(iii) Office premises

The Group has obtained the right to use a property
as its office premises through a tenancy agreement.
The lease term is 3 years.

Restrictions or covenants

Most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless
approval is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use
asset can only be used by the Group and the Group
is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying
assets.

For lease of property, the Group is required to keep
the property in a good state of repair and return the
property in its original condition at the end of the

The Group leases a motor vehicle and plant and
machinery under leases, which were pledged, and
expiring within 1 year (2020: 2 years) and expired
during the year (2020: expiring within 1 year)
respectively. The lease of motor vehicle included
an option to purchase the motor vehicle at the
end of the lease term while the lease of plant and
machinery transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the plant and
machinery. None of the leases includes variable lease
payments.

THAEEREMRFEAKX
EHEEM T MAS
HAeER -+ mEHEE
B16E274

(i) HRE

AEBEZBHEHESRER—
EWEERAEZR - ME
EHR=F-

1R 5 R R4

AMOBEHRAE —EAR
B BRIFES L EARE
BRIBREERAEEER AR
AEEER - UEIEAEE
HESEREREE

RPEAETYWEHREMS @ &
Elﬁ%%“*%%ﬁh&
Eﬁ%@%#ﬂ WREE

lease. EREBRAEZYHEBIER
J?Xﬂjif& 0
Residual value guarantees ER1EJEIR
The Group does not provide residual value REBWELSPHAEYEMR
guarantees for the lease contract of office premises. ERMEERERER o
(iv) Motor vehicle and Plant and machinery RERBER#ES

AEEHE-WMAIERET
e EA - mMEEHD R
R—FRARR(—F_FF:
RMERER) RERAEFE
Hm (= ?_gi : EA—EW
Hm) - AEHERSHEMEE
HIREE Awﬁﬁ’]k%%
MR B EEBEBARLD
75 HERER f f2 &@#&E’]frﬁ
§- b EETEAEH
TAEFHIE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

F_—Ft+-A=t—HAILFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

b
=4

14. SUBSIDIARIES 14. (NE AR

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBARGHEWT

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Company name operations  Issued and paid-up share to the Company Principal activities
B/ R AR R R RA
ATER XY BRTRBZRA BZEAL FTEER
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--F —E-TF ZE--F —T-TF
Cokeen Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of
HRERERAR EE 10,0008 7T 10,000/ T management and
administrative
services
RIEEERITHRS
E-Dotcom Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
0 2B T 287 REER
HTP Industrial Limited Hong Kong  HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 100 100  Sale of precision parts
Al (B ERRA &% 2,000,000 2,000,000 7T and components
HERERT I
Hi-Tech (China) Investment Hong Kong  HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Limited A% 2,000,000 T 2,000,000 REAZK
RA(HE)ZREBR AR
Hi-Tech Investment Holdings  British Virgin Islands US$50,000 US$50,000 100 100 Investment holding
Limited HBERARES 50,0005 7T 50,000%7C RAER
Hi-Tech Property Holdings British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 US$1 100 100 Property holding
Limited Mainland China 127 (ES MERE
RBRAREE/
e
Hi-Tech Precision Industrial Limited Hong Kong  HK$1,500,000 HK$1,500,000 100 100 Sale of precision parts
PEERIEERAR A% 1,500,000 1,500,000/ 7T and components
HERETIM
Hunpex Limited Hong Kong  HK$4,650,000 HK$4,650,000 100 100 Investment holding
RIERRAR A% 4,650,000 4,650,000 REAZK
K & P Group (Holdings) British Virgin Islands/  US$1,238,545  US$1,238,545 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 1,238,545%7C 1,238,545% T REAZR
EBSBREE,/
K.S. (China) Electronics Hong Kong HKS$2 HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
Manufactory Limited ; 2B 257 REER
By (B EFBAERAR
Mars Figld Limited British Virgin US$_1 US$J 100 100 Investment holding
B ER AT Islands/Hong Kong 1£7 (v REAZRK
%Eﬁ@%ﬁ%/
B0
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

14. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14. B QT (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and interest attributable
Company name operations  Issued and paid-up share to the Company  Principal activities
B/ R ARAMERE
REER EXH ERTRBERS BHEADL FEEK
2021 2020 2021 2020
8- "T-TF ZB--§ “T°TF
Sun Ngai Plastic Products Hong Kong HK$10,890,000 HK$10,890,000 100 100 Inactive
Factory Limited %% 10,890,000/ 7T 10,890,000/ T T F S
MEZBRmBMERAR
Technology Trends British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 US$50,000 100 100 Sale of precision parts
International Limited Singapore 50,000% 7T 50,000 7T and components
ERGBRES/ HERRTHMN
il
hR(PIL)EFHERAA* Mainland China US$10,000,000 US$10,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
FEIRRE 10,000,000 10,000,000 7T of precision parts
and components
HERHERTTEM
PUHEREFAERRA Mainland China  U$$3,000,000 US$3,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
hEIRE  3,000,000%7T 3,000,0005%7T of precision parts

and components
HERHERTTEM

FRERE ORI BRAA* Mainland China HK$22,125,390 HK$22,125,390 100 100 Inactive
B R BE (note i) (note i) ik g 3

22,125,390 7 22,125,390/8 7T

(Fff&Ei) (GED)

* These entities are Mainland China limited liability companies.

*

AR RFEARERREERA

Note: BisE
()  On 22 September 2016, the registered share capital increased from () RZZT—A"FNLAZ+=H FMERH
HK$8,000,000 to HK$23,000,000. The remaining registered share 8,000,0007% 7T 3% A 223,000,000/ 7T °
capital of HK$874,610 is committed by the Group to inject on or AEBAREA_E-_NFLA=-+—8H
before 21 September 2026. A EN B ERTE & ZAN874,61075 7T ©
Except for K & P Group (Holdings) Limited, all of the above BrK & P Group (Holdings) Limitedsh © £
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. None of the MATEMH B AR B AREEERE
subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during the year. RAFE  BENBARSBITEME
15787
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, EERR - LRFVIEZARARINEA
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results AEENEAFEERNBRNAEEE
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets EREFEED  c EFWRE - RHA
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the b E R B FAELR - G5 BANTB
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. RITEK °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

15. RAVFEEFABHERZEH

PROFIT OR LOSS EE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Club membership TR 680,000 680,000
Forward currency contracts REIEEEH 1,070,519 9,607,424
1,750,519 10,287,424
Current asset REBEE
Forward currency contracts REAEEE LA 19,297,795 15,852,808
Club membership SHEE

At 31 December 2021, the unlisted investment represented
club membership issued by a private entity. It is measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The fair value
of the club membership is determined with reference to the
publicly available price information.

Forward currency contracts, at fair values, held for trading

The Group entered into twenty-one (2020: nineteen) forward
currency contracts at a total of US$52,511,764 (2020:
US$49,997,958) for the exchange of United States Dollars
("US$") with RMB with the forward rates ranged from
RMB6.575 to RMB7.238 (2020: RMB6.652 to RMB7.238) per
US$1. The maturity dates of these forward currency contracts
are during the period from 17 January 2022 to 15 June 2023
(2020: 15 January 2021 to 15 August 2022).

During the year, the Group has realised gain of HK$5,267,241
(2020: HK$3,044,252) arising from twelve (2020: twelve)
forward currency contracts of a total of US$33,046,500 (2020:
US$31,621,958) for the exchange of US$ with RMB which
appreciated (2020: appreciated).

RZE—_—F+-_A=+—H8 ' ¥FEm
WEERLSEREL2EMEE - NE
EHERRAEEAFEE - L EFTE
BZANFEEDZEAAZKREER -

BEATFEERSGMERE®AH
AEBERI =+ —H (ZFE=FF:
TAM) ZEX([ET])HARKE
#{E52,511,764F T (ZE =T F:
49,997,958% 7 T) HREIER AL &
HERBERFIEITLAL6.575AREE
7.238 AR (ZZ2-FF :6.652 AR
F7.238ARE) -ZERPEELENZ
N ASER—T——F—At+tAZE=
T-=FXNAT+HRA (CE-TF H-
T_—F—H+HBE-_ZT-__FNA/+
FHAE) °

RNER > REBR+—_H(ZE-_F:
+ =15 )Ex i AR (833,046,500
EZn(-F =T :31,621,958% 7T )
MRPEBESY  BARBEETLH
B(ZE_ZF: AE)MKFEER
U 285,267,241 T( Z T =T F:
3,044,252/ 7T) °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

15.

16.

17.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the forward currency contracts did
not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. The change in the
fair value of these non-hedging currency derivatives amounting
to a gain of HK$10,760,890 (2020: HK$25,460,232) was
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

15.

BAVEEFABRERZSH
i-9-3€ )

R-BE-—F+-A=1+—H Z%EF&R
HEBSHTTHFEE RS AMNE
o ZEFENEE ZITETANAF
BEZEE W 510,760,890 T( —
T —F 4 25,460,232/ 70 )W B R
EHE—TE-_—F+-A=+—H1>
FERA -

INVENTORIES 16. B&
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETHF
HK$ HK$
&I BT
Raw materials JFH 32,176,015 18,420,867
Work in progress TS 14,098,109 13,301,315
Finished goods SIRK T 42,263,734 33,140,083
88,537,858 64,862,265
Less: provision for slow-moving B T E RS

inventories

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no inventories
carried at fair value less cost to sell.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

17.

(1,220,950) (1,220,950)

87,316,908 63,641,315

R-B_—FFk_F_FF+_H=+
— B YEITAFERAFEERHEE
FXAN AR

BANRE - BREREMEKRK
|

2021 2020

:g:—ﬂi — 7 —= E'E

HK$ HK$

BT T

Prepayments TES5RIE 1,427,522 1,870,429
Toolings and mould deposits BRAEES® 160,541 216,019
Deposits and other receivables e RHMEUWGRIE 8,141,978 6,707,374
9,730,041 8,793,822
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. FEUWBRIE
2021 2020
—E-—& ZE-TF
HK$ HK$
BT P IT
Trade receivables FEUBRIE 107,399,455 93,357,804
Less: loss allowance (note 33(c)) B BB (FTEE33(c) (285,479) (254,979)

107,113,976 93,102,825

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and loss 7 872N 5 B A fE Y BR T8 K H i fE U Zh T8
allowance for trade and other receivables is included in note FEANEERE REEBRIE SR
33(c) to the consolidated financial statements. SEEAMTEREMNEE33(C) o

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of A4 ER R e IR BR TB 1R 242 B B LR G
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss EIERE R ZERDITIOT ¢

allowance, is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TFE

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within 90 days A+ERA 102,194,936 90,050,010
91 to 180 days A+—Z—BNTX 4,890,406 2,915,897
Over 180 days —BANATRNRE 28,634 136,918

107,113,976 93,102,825

19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 19. BRITERREE

2021 2020
—E-—F T TF
HK$ HK$
BTt BIT

Time deposits with original maturity over #2838 =& A R & 2| 83 F HifF K
three months 65,945,323 40,456,430

As stated in the consolidated statement 234G ERESRER

of cash flows 28,407,654 45,253,420

94,352,977 85,709,850
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P

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

19.

20.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, included in the balance of
the Group are bank balances and cash deposited in Mainland
China and denominated in RMB of HK$3,926,238 (2020:
HK$5,390,463). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under Mainland China‘s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default. Time deposits as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 represented bank deposits placed in banks in
Hong Kong. The interest rate ranged from 0.43% to 2.82%
per annum in 2021 (2020: 2.33% to 2.75%).

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

19. BITERREL(E)

REEER - A& BB KRE 2 87
BEUARBTEZRITEHREESA
3,926,2388 L(=ZF —Z4F : 5,390,463
BIL) e ARBETREEmREBREME
R AR R HP B K B N E A AR TE K
#7 -  HERINMEERTE  A&E
TS BRI G INETS 2 BRITHS
AR HIRABINE o

RITRESTREEEMOBT EENL
BERIRIT - R —FRZTTF
T A=+ HNEHERAERES
IRITHIRITEN - MRZEZ—FHF
AEEGEH0.43%E2.82% (ZE-F
F 1 233%%2.75%) °

20. B ARIE

RIS R ENBREZEZH 2 R
TR

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ETF

HK$ HK$

BT I

Within 90 days N+RA 45,644,564 51,995,082
91 to 180 days N+—=—8N\+XK 22,285 7,205
Over 180 days —BNTRARE 14,972 27,827
45,681,821 52,030,114

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on terms varying from 60 to 120 days of
invoice date.

EMRAREER - 2B R —RNEER
BBZATE—A_TXRER-
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BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

21. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EFtEERHEMESRKIE

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-THF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Contract liabilities (note 21(a)) EHBEFEE210)) 5,328,180 4,419,272
Other accrued liabilities HihEztaE 12,613 45,043
Other payables H b e FRIA 7,319,588 6,966,799
Accrued sales commission FEMHERS 4,033,665 3,931,771
Staff cost payables FERT B TR 25,375,560 25,940,985

42,069,606 41,303,870

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average HEiENRBAREREEMATH=
credit period of three months. @A -
(a) Contract liabilities (a) aHAEE
The amount includes toolings and mould deposits received ZeBEeEoWEAZERE K
and sales deposits received. HERE o
The movements of toolings and mould deposits received REBFERNNBE B EREARZE
and sales deposits received from contracts with customers 155 2 RE B P& XK E WIEA
within HKFRS 15 during the year are as follows: BZeREWSEHEZRS 2EBIT ¢
2021 2020
___—ﬂi —= —EEE'E
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
At 1 January m—H—H 4,419,272 4,597,572
Recognised as revenue R AU (14,629,680)  (10,464,485)
Receipt of advances or recognition W BB} 5K IAE sk #E A7 FE L 5008
of receivables 15,538,588 10,286,185
At 31 December R+=HA=+—H 5,328,180 4,419,272
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BE_<

——F+-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

21. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

(continued)

(a) Contract liabilities (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there is an
increase in the overall contract activities and customer
base of the Group, thereby increasing the amount arising
from the receipt of advances or recognition of receivables;
while for the year ended 31 December 2020, the decrease
was due to a decrease in the overall contract activities
and customer base of the Group and the negotiation of
larger prepayments.

At 31 December 2021, the contract liabilities that are
expected to be settled within the next twelve months are
HK$4,714,920 (2020: HK$4,137,751) and the contract
liabilities that are expected to be settled after more than
12 months are HK$613,260 (2020: HK$281,521). The
customer paid for the goods or services in advance and
the timing of the transfer of those goods or services is at
the discretion of the customer.

21. EstEBREMENRE L)

(a) ENREE)

HE-_T-_—4+=-_HA=+—H
IF ARAEEEBANETTR
BEEZ L WEIFER KBS
ERERRIBNSEEL I 5
SHEBE_Z-_ZTFE+-_A=+
—BIERY  FERAEEEE
BHEBREFPREZ B UK
ERmAEREMNZIE -

RZBE-_—F+=-—A=+—8H"
B XA EEL714,9208 (==
— T4 1 4,137,7518 0 ) FEEA R
Z2RT-—EARLES aHak&
613,260/ ;( = T = T F:
281,521 ) AR BB 2 % 1
“EREE - ERATBLZEY AR
WBEIE - WABREEMHARGH

BERHE -

KIBITEER 00 KBTI IEAIEAE

Unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance
obligations

EWRARE KD WHER S RET

The following table shows unsatisfied performance

obligations resulting from toolings and mould deposits REXHEEMT :
received and sales deposits received:
2021 2020
—E-—-F Sk 23
HK$ HK$
BT PSTT
Aggregate amount of the transaction R+=—HA=+—HB 4D
price allocated to toolings and HEHABTHEREEZ
mould deposits received and sales EMEBEHER TR S
deposits received that are partially or {B4%
fully unsatisfied as at 31 December 8,581,239 7,448,477
Management expects that 64% of the transaction price BEEE:  R—_E-_—F+-_F=

T —HORERABTARNRZE
& M64%4G £ T — (8 3R & H A 7E R
AUk A (5,491,993 7T ) H #36%
(3,089,246/8 T0) 5N =T — = F K
FEBR LHRFESEIBESTOR
Y A] S E o

allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations as of
31 December 2021 will be recognised as revenue during
the next reporting period (HK$5,491,993). The remaining
36% (HK$3,089,246) will be recognised in the 2023
financial year. The amount disclosed above does not
include variable consideration which is constrained.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 22. FRBITREMEER
BORROWINGS
2021 —E——fF
Effective
interest rate
(%) per annum Maturity Amount
BERERE(%) 2HAE ¢85
HK$
BT
Revolving term loans — unsecured 2.38-2.51 Fully repayable from 17/3/2022 to 24/3/2022 11,000,000
BERAMER —EEF M-Z--f=ZAttHZE
TECCE-A-tTNARHEE
Trust receipt loans 2.01-2.26 Fully repayable from 12/1/2022 to 18/3/2022 7,792,000
EEBEER M=Z=-=f—HA+=HZ
“E--F=ATN\H2BHEE
18,792,000
2020 —E-T&
Effective
interest rate
(%) per annum Maturity Amount
BERFMNE(%) FHA ok
HK$
BT
Revolving term loans — unsecured 2.46-2.67 Fully repayable from 4/1/2021 to 29/3/2021 10,000,000
RRARER —EEF H-ZE-_—F-AEAZE
—E-—F=-A-thBAZHEE
Trust receipt loans 2.42-2.65 Fully repayable from 28/1/2021 to 29/4/2021 1,345,750
ERKEER M-Z_—F—-A-+/\BE
—E-—FNA-thB2HEE
11,345,750

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate
their fair values.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank facilities were
secured by a corporate guarantee executed by the Company.

AEBERFEEZREEEL QA FEER

+

T

o

R-ZTE-_—F+_A=+—H K&EE
ERRITHEREE 2B AR AR
ZIEER -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

23. LEASE LIABILITIES 23. HE&AE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities RIFEHR - NEEIZFIHE L HH
of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the reporting HEaEMT :
periods:
2021 2020
——% T THF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current: n
Within one year R— EW 124,128 819,027
Non-current: FERE :
After one year but within two years —FERERMERN = 126,216
124,128 945,243
The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year: REBNRERNERIATHRIE
2021 2020
=B —F T TF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Lease payments: MEHE :
Short-term leases SSHATHE 215,225 201,658
Low-value assets BERENEE - 1,693
Expenses recognised in profit or loss RERERNY 215,225 203,351
Lease payments: MEFIE
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6) %HEETE*'J%(W%I@ 29,213 82,455
Under leases REET 814,714 1,454,008
843,927 1,536,463
Total cash outflow for leases HEz@eBes Rt 1,059,152 1,739,814
Commitment under leases HEAE
At 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any R-EBE-—F+—H8 :-I—— B A&
commitment to short-term leases (2020: HK$34,222). BYEAESHHEESE(ZE_FF :
34,222787T) °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

24. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

EFERIE

RFEERNZBEEFIAAEREEZZHN
T

Deferred tax liabilities BEEBEEE
2021 —E-—-F
Fair value  Depreciation
change on allowance
financial in excess
assets at of related  Revaluation
FVPL  depreciation of properties Total
&FVPL B
SREEZ wEZ
DMFEESZE TERHE MREMR st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2021 RZZE=—F—F—H 2,300,000 872,032 21,476,000 24,648,032
Deferred tax charged to other REEREMEZERANRZ
comprehensive income during R
the year - - 1,798,374 1,798,374
Gross deferred tax liabilities R-Z2_—F+-A=+—H
at 31 December 2021 ZERHRAEEE 2,300,000 872,032 23274374 26,446,406
2020 —T-THF
Fair value Depreciation
change on allowance
financial in excess
assets at of related Revaluation
FVPL depreciation  of properties Total
HRFVPL pattarpiclid
FREEL FEZ
RTBERL FEEHE MEER @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2020 R-_Z-FTF—-A—A = 872,032 21,824,366 22,696,398
Deferred tax charged to profit AEERBHRNGRZ
or loss during the year RAERE 2,300,000 - - 2,300,000
Deferred tax credited to other REERAMRERAGAZ
comprehensive income during R
the year - - (348,366) (348,366)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZEZTE+-A=+-H
at 31 December 2020 ZERBER R 2,300,000 872,032 21,476,000 24,648,032
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

24. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 24, EEBIIEE)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Pursuant to Mainland China Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends to be distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

At 31 December 2021, no deferred tax has been recognised
for such withholding taxes that would be payable on the
retained earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China that are subject to withholding taxes at
distribution. In the opinion of the directors, these accumulated
profits, at the present time, are required for financing the
continuing operations of the entities and no distribution would
be made in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount
of retained earnings associated with these subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately HK$12,716,000 at 31
December 2021 (2020: HK$11,749,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

EEBAEEE(E)

BIEPBIRERERGERE - RPEX
BERK LN IR B R XM IR E &
TR B BZI0%BURTENR o bR
EFHR-_ZTNF—A—BRERNR - Wil
AR —ZEE+FE+-_A=+—HEHNA
I o s R B K P ER AN B 3% 1 2 Y B VAR
BRI BB - AR EREEATEH
TE o Bt - AEEBERERRPEAKR
BER S I ENB AR =TT \F—
A—RAREENBFFD RIS T
TR -

R_TE-_—F+-_A=+—08  x5£H
Iﬁﬁﬁ¢iﬁﬁ&zzwgﬁﬁﬁm
DIRARER BAIRFE A 2 B BT ER
BEFRIE - ESRARBEAALEZER
IR AAE T A RSELE - WER
FERARKBETMEDIR - RZZE_FF+
ZA=+—8 - WERERERES AR
B ARRBAMNERE CEEHEAE
HBET4912,716,0008 L ( — 2 -F4F :
11,749,000/ ¢ ) °

EAEBIHEE
HRARERELCHBREEZABNT

2021 2020

—E-—F ZE-TF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Deductible temporary differences Al FHB SR ER 1,411,879 4,875,939
Tax losses FRIEEE 20,876,972 41,627,042
At end of the reporting period R EHAR 22,288,851 46,502,981
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25.

SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax assets (continued)

At 31 December 2021, the Group has unrecognised tax
losses that can be offset against future taxable profits of
the respective subsidiaries. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The expiry dates for unrecognised tax losses are as follows:

24,

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

R IE (&)
ELERBEEE)

R=ZZF=-_—F+=-F=+—H &~5£H
BRI H AR ZENE A R ERER
K AR FERTRIAREE - BRARRREFE
BOREETENR - EU W AR RIELE
RIBEE - RERTIEBENEmB 0
™

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-_THF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Tax losses without expiration 4 5 2 TR TR s 1 8,494,778 30,181,459
Tax losses expiring in: AR fEim 2 BB A
- 2022 -—_F - - =
- 2023 :2::$ -
- 2024 —E U4 10,447,888 10,447,888
- 2025 _?_ﬁi 999,133 997,695
- 2026 - T RF 935,173 -
At the end of the reporting period TR & HAoR 20,876,972 41,627,042

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

ZA/N T/inﬁl&%%ﬁﬁﬁ%]ﬁiﬂﬁﬁ S
BT E

SHARE CAPITAL 25. fRa
2021 2020
—E-—F T F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Shares [iiavil
Authorised: JERE
900,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each 900,000,000/ &R E &
0.10/%5 7T 90,000,000 90,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRATE
267,004,800 shares of HK$0.10 each  267,004,800f% &A% E (&
0.10%7T 26,700,480 26,700,480
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_Z_—F+-A=t—RALFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) with effect from 23 May 2012. A summary of the

Scheme is as follows:

Purposes

Participants

To provide incentives and rewards
to eligible participants for their
contributions to the Group and/or to
enable the Group to recruit and retain
high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to
the Group and any entity in which the
Group holds an equity interest (“Invested
Entity”).

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

any employee (whether full-time or
part-time), executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent
non-executive directors of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to
any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; any customer of
the Group or any Invested Entity;
any person or entity that provides
research, development or other
technological support to the Group
or any Invested Entity; and

any shareholder of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity or
any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity.

26. B ETE

ARRERMR —ZE——FHA=-+=
B AR B BI(T5HE)) - FHEI8

E:2)
=

H

T

iy

REBARESERZHE
ATHAEEEL 2B/
K/ S5 B A S B
B8 E R MR A
SEETAAEEFEHR
EAB AR 2 AR
BRERQRDBEKREEZ
ANER -

() ANR7A] -~ HTAHE
NEIREEAMEE
RRZ EEE (T
R - BT
B FHTEFER
B IFITES

(i) MAKEEFKER
RIS EM AR E QA
REHEMSRBE 2 E
I ftER  AEE K
ERIAIRE AR ZE
AEP: MAKER
EAIFriRE A alieft
e FAESEME
iy Sz & < F A ALk
NCINE

(i) ANEBE{ERKE R A
MR E AR Z
ERENE NS
Al X B A &) sl R/ BT
5B AR T T ER
BHEZEMFBEA o
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Total number of
ordinary shares
available for
issue and the
percentage of the
issued share capital
that it represents
as at the date of
the annual report

Maximum
entitlement of
each participant

Period within which
the securities must
be taken up under
an option

Minimum period for
which an option
must be held
before it can be
exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance

Period within which
payments/calls/
loans must be
made/repaid

26,700,480 ordinary shares and 10% of
the issued share capital.

Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company in any 12-month
period.

An option may be exercised at any time
during a period to be determined and
notified by the directors to each grantee,
but shall end in any event not later than
10 years from the date of the grant of
options subject to the provisions for
early termination thereof.

There is no minimum period for which
an option granted must be held before
it can be exercised.

The offer of a grant of share options
may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer with a
consideration of HK$1.00 being payable
by the grantee.

Not applicable.

SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

26. B AESTE(2)

AT EITHY
Rl
AN E
RAF
HEMAEE
BT
A D

BHR2EA
TR
Rt EIR

RIERE R

277 B S s
ij‘lJ\ E\ﬁ [z

H HARR

BT
ZRIWA
FA MR
g HAR

PR
-

Rk
Rk (E
ERER

RHI AR

26,700,480 & 8% K4l
BEITIRAZ10% °

EEM22EAAR - T F
HBBARR D EITRAZ
1% °

BERAAIREFRE K
e BEAEAERITE
FERE - MEEEAIBR T
NEERBE L ERER
HIRE SH10F (IR IBRZ IR K
e R4 L RIBRSN) o

1T BB AR i 2 B I
VERBBHREHR -

A AR IR BB A A 2
HZBE-_+NBA £
FESHEERESEE.008
T LR o

TR -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z-_—F+-A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Basis of determining
the exercise price

The remaining life
of the Scheme

Determined by the directors but shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the ordinary shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of the offer
of options, which must be a trading
day; (ii) the average closing price of the
ordinary shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of options; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

The Scheme remains in force until 22
May 2022.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There were no share options granted, exercised, cancelled or
forfeited since the adoption of the Scheme and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

26. BIRERTE(#)

THEENE BREFRE  HETBER

EEE TR zBEEE: (VBB
B EHBEREREEE
(ARRZRA)ZWME
(CABS X P A SR P8 E
R (i) B R
BREZZANDERS
B2 FU B (AR
PREMRAEERE)
K (i) N R R AR EE ©

SrEIMHBE FEEMHE—_Z_—
FHA AA-+—-Hit-

BREDSHAAL TN EFEREREXRN
BRE LIRE 2 #E o

BRI BILAR - W - 770
IHSEERBRERRN T —F K
T -TFE+-F=+—H - BEXRTT
{2 BEARHE -
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

27. RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
57 and 58 of the consolidated financial statements.

The share premium account represents the excess of
the net proceeds or consideration from issuance of the
Company’s shares over their par value.

The application of the share premium account is governed
by Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result
of the Group’s reorganisation and represents the excess
of the nominal value of the share capital of the former
holding company of the Group, K & P Group (Holdings)
Limited, prior to the Group's reorganisation in preparation
for the listing of the Company’s shares in 1996, over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange therefor, less the amount capitalised to pay
up the nil-paid shares issued on the incorporation of the
Company.

The asset revaluation reserve of the Group is used to
record the increases in the fair value of land and buildings
and the decreases to the extent that such decrease relates
to an increase on the same asset previously recognised in
equity.

The exchange fluctuation reserve of the Group is used to
record exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

27. #1E
(a) &£HE

REERARMFEE 2 NEBREE
MEEE 2R AGE B EHRER
FES5TNS8BE 2R A ERZERK o

BinmBREZRITARBRNE
KSZERBFRIREBEE
EEZ &R °

B EERZEASAERE N
IN—FRREFLOGKEE -

AEBZHAABRFEEAEEE
B HEAEBR—ANANER
EHEARNBRM LM Z2EHARIA
EEZATERAR K & P Group
(Holdings) Limited 2 f&% 7S {E &
KRR BRBZERMDMEITIK
AEEMZ H 22 8RE AN
S NNV NN Doz o 1 9D VAl i 5
TRBED 2 25 -

AEBEzEEERHBRMAERL
B REFRAFEEZEM -
RO SERNEREER
BER DT EEE MR E

Ny
S o
I

AEBEZELRBFERBIANC
e NI NUOY NG R E S ]
EEMELER -
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BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

27. RESERVES (continued) 27. ®E &)
(b) Company (b) 2AF]
Share
premium Contributed Accumulated Proposed
account surplus losses dividend Total
R A3 1B iR BABR RitER BERE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT B
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-_FF—F—H 50,856,881 49,999,981  (37,691,613) 5,340,096 68,505,345
Profit for the year and total REERFIRAEE
comprehensive income FHKAEE
for the year - - 22,663,962 - 22,663,962
Interim dividend paid (note 11) B AEIIRE (ffi:E11) - - (6,675,120) - (6,675,120)
2019 Final dividend paid ENZE-NERERE
(note 11) (FrzE11) - = - (5340,09)  (5,340,09)
Final dividend proposed (note 11) RS (FiizE11) - - (20,025,360) 20,025,360 -
At 31 December 2020 RZZZTF
+-RA=+—-H 50,856,881 49,999,981 (41,728,131) 20,025,360 79,154,091
Profit for the year and total KEERH RAFE
comprehensive income FHKAESE
for the year - - 33,440,654 - 33,440,654
Interim dividend paid B ERE
(note 11) (MzE11) - - (10,680,192) - (10,680,192)
2020 Final dividend paid ENZE-EFERBRE
(note 11) (PtzE11) - - - (20,025,360) (20,025,360)
Final dividend proposed BERHRE
(note 11) (FreE11) = - (21,360,384) 21,360,384 -
At 31 December 2021 R=%2=-%
+=A=1+—-H 50,856,881 49,999,981 (40,328,053) 21,360,384 81,889,193
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the AR ZHANBERTE K & P Group
difference between the underlying consolidated net assets (Holdings) Limited & E KB A R
of K & P Group (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries at SBEEHAMB 2GEEEFE
the date on which the Group’s reorganisation became =R B AAETARRZA T
effective, referred to in note 27(a) to the consolidated [ AEEZ 2B (FBSERGEE
financial statements, over the nominal value of the share B RARMEE27() - BEHEE
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore, NAEAR AR R 2 sE A B A
less the amount capitalised to pay up the nil-paid shares BITARBEZ R D258 -

issued on the incorporation of the Company.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

27. RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

27. f#E#)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
Company may make distributions to its members out of

the contributed surplus
31 December 2021, the

in certain circumstances. As at
Company’s reserves available for

distribution (before proposed final dividend), calculated
in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
amounted to HK$31,032,312 (2020: HK$28,297,210).

28. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Details of the changes in the
activities are as follows:

Group’s liabilities from financing

28.

(b) R\(#&)

BEBREZE-NAN—FQE1E
RARAEREBR TRAAR
BREBERAEKBIELDIK - R
—E-—F+-A=+—H &K
ARIBBEERE-—NN—FAF
ETHFE - Al AR RES K
ZEBEEZREREF) A
31,032,328 (= =& & :
28,297,210/ 7T) °

MEFHELECEEED

AEEREEHEL AEEH T HE
W -

2021 —E-_—F
Interest-
bearing bank
and other Lease Dividend
borrowing liabilities payable Total
HERITR
Hitfg & HEAE ERRE #st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At beginning of the year REEEL 11,345,750 945,243 - 12,290,993
New unsecured revolving term ¥tk iREIBAIE R
loans/trust receipt loans EEBRER 54,584,643 - - 54,584,643
Declaration of dividend Bk E - - 30,705,552 30,705,552
Dividend paid ERRE - - (30,705,552) (30,705,552)
Repayment of unsecured BEEEABRAENEDR
revolving term loans/trust ERMEER
receipt loans (47,138,393) - - (47,138,393)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEARE = (814,714) = (814,714)
Exchange realignment b 5 A - (6,401) - (6,401)
At end of the year REEER 18,792,000 124,128 - 18,916,128
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BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

28. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 28. MEFEIELECEERE &)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)
2020 —E_FTF
Interest-
bearing bank
and other Lease Dividend
borrowing liabilities payable Total
TEHRTR
HifEE HEBE FERTARE st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
PBIT PBIT BT BT
At beginning of the year RAEER 12,040,876 2,400,456 - 14,441,332
New unsecured bank loans/ L EIRIR T E R RIR
revolving term loans/trust BHER KRB ER
receipt loans 34,011,318 - - 34,011,318
Declaration of dividend Bk E - - 12,015,216 12,015,216
Dividend paid ERE - - (12,015,216) (12,015,216)

Repayment of unsecured bank EREIKIFRITER BIR
loans/revolving term loans/trust BEIE R (St iE &R

receipt loans (34,706,444) - - (34,706,444)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERRE - (1,454,008) - (1,454,008)
Exchange realignment P 3 32 = (1,205) = (1,205)
At end of the year RAFER 11,345,750 945,243 - 12,290,993
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and leases MERTERHEMEERBEAERES
liabilities are disclosed in note 22 and 23 to the consolidated BTSRRI 5E22 230 B EE o

financial statements respectively.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

29. COMMITMENTS

Except for those disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, at the end of the reporting period, the
Group did not have any other capital commitments.

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

29. AIE

FRIRB AR A MBS mAR R E i 550
REBEHR - NEE L EAFE A

= ©

=

30. BEALRS

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: REETFTEEIEAE ZIREN -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Short term employee benefits EEEERA 9,969,720 8,579,792
Contributions to retirement benefit RIREFIGT B
schemes 27,000 36,000
Total compensation paid to key SN TEEEEAE 2 BRI
management personnel 9,996,720 8,615,792

The above compensation for key management personnel of
the Group includes emoluments paid to the directors. Further
details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AEAEETEZEE AR 2 HBMBIEX
NTEEZHE - ERAESHE 274
BERBRNEE M RIS
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BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

31. SR TEWN S E
RBEHE - ¢MmITASERNEEE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as wm
follows:
2021 —E=-—fF
Financial
assets at Financial
amortised asset
cost at FVPL Total
RESHRA 2 &FVPLZ
SREE SREE @t
HKS HK$ HK$
Financial assets as per consolidated HBEHAHBRRIEZ
statement of financial position: SREE
Financial asset at FVPL BRVPLZ S RIEE
~ Club membership -2 - 680,000 680,000
- Forward currency contracts —RHERLY - 20,368,314 20,368,314
Financial assets included in BERBERFTE ek
prepayments, deposits and HipEW Iz £/
other receivables (note 17) BE(HF17) 1,448,027 = 1,448,027
Trade receivables FEWRERIE 107,113,976 - 107,113,976
Bank balances and cash ROBEBRERE 94,352,977 - 94,352,977
202,914,980 21,048,314 223,963,294
2021 —B-—fF
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
REHERA
ZERMEE M@t
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial liabilities as per consolidated BEGEMBERTRZ
statement of financial position: SRAE:
Trade payables FERTBRIE 45,681,821 45,681,821
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilites ~ B &M E & ERELMEMNZEL
and other payables (note 21) *BAREME21) 10,184,283 10,184,283
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings mRRTRAMEE 18,792,000 18,792,000
Lease liabilities HERE 124,128 124,128
74,782,232 74,782,232
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BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 31. €M T AN ¥ (&)

(continued)
2020 —E—TF
Financial
assets at Financial
amortised asset
cost at FVPL Total
REBHEKAZ FVPLZ
SREE SREBE Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Financial assets as per consolidated ~ REFGAFBERAERZ
statement of financial position: SEEE
Financial asset at FVPL BFVPLZ S RIEE
~ Club membership it - 630,000 680,000
— Forward currency contracts —RHEELY - 25,460,232 25,460,232
Financial assets included in BEREMNFE &RER
prepayments, deposits and HitfEEIE 2 £
other receivables (note 17) BE(HF17) 931,024 = 931,024
Trade receivables FEU BRTE 93,102,825 - 93,102,825
Bank balances and cash BOEBERE 85,709,850 - 85,709,850
179,743,699 26,140,232 205,883,931
2020 —E-EF
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
REHEKA
ZERARE o
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial liabilities as per consolidated REEGEWBEARRRZ
statement of financial position: RAE:
Trade payables FERTARIR 52,030,114 52,030,114
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilites ~ BEREtBERAMENZTE £RE
and other payables (note 21) E(PEE21) 9,547,977 9,547,977
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings EERITREMEES 11,345,750 11,345,750
Lease liabilities HEEE 945,243 945,243
73,869,084 73,869,084
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BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

32. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 32. AF¥EEFE

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured AT BB BERELERFI135 : A
at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these FEEFEMAE L ATFEBE={AZR
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis across FIHIRATFEBEAEZEERBEK
the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS AR B R ERN RS SRR IR
13, Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement NEBEZHEENREZESRME A
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input that T EENRERETESEEEATENG AR
is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of inputs B ABBESERERNOT :

are defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—R(EERER): AEBEEF=ET
markets for identical assets or liabilities & B ™5 S
that the Group can access at the FEEESEEZ#H
measurement date; BORKETHE):

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices F_H EEXBBEAER
included within Level 1 that are S EEBR @A
observable for the asset or liability, g5 F—HBE
either directly or indirectly; Z BRI

Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset or E=M(RESER) BESBEBZTA
liability. ST AR o
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BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

32. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 32. A EETESE)
The following table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities TRETEATEBEFENEERE
measured at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy: & WIRAFEESERSE 25
2021 -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B et B=R Et
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial asset at FVPL: RFVPLZ S RIEE :
— Club membership — ST
— outside Hong Kong —BEEIN 680,000 - = 680,000
— Forward currency —REEBERE
contracts - 20,368,314 - 20,368,314
Leasehold land and HEFE I HEET
buildings:
Commercial - Hong Kong ~ B%— &% - 68,600,000 - 68,600,000
Owned buildings: BEETF
Industrial — outside T —-FBHEN
Hong Kong - - 76,223,000 76,223,000
2020 ZECTF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— FEM BE=R “Et
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
P TT BT P IT P IT
Financial asset at FVPL: LFVPLZ R R EEE
— Club membership —BFEE
— outside Hong Kong —BBFEHN 680,000 - - 680,000
— Forward currency —RHEEER
contracts - 25,460,232 — 25,460,232
Leasehold land and buildings: A& #A + it KiEF :
Commercial - Hong Kong B % — &% - 66,730,000 - 66,730,000
Owned buildings: BEEF :
Industrial — outside TE—BBEIN
Hong Kong — - 73,216,000 73,216,000
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BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

32. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 32. A EEFE#E)
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there BE_ZE-_—FR-_TE-_FTF+_A=
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value +—HIEFERN  AFEEFEF R
measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair NEZH B EEAER - BEE=
value measurements. BATFEEAEZEAREL -
Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements F=ZR AT EEFEZETH
2021 —E-—F
Land and
building:
Industrial
- outside
Hong Kong
T RETF
TI¥-F BB
HK$
Description it BT
At beginning of the reporting period AR HA 9] 73,216,000
Depreciation debited to profit or loss BRI 2 T E (2,447,060)
Fair value gain on revaluation credited EEAFEBEIKZSET A
to other comprehensive income Hi 2wz A 3,997,233
Exchange realignment PE H X 1,456,827
At the end of the reporting period RIEREHAR 76,223,000
Unrealised gains for the period included in profit 7B A FE7E1E250E T A IR HAR
or loss held at the end of the reporting period B ZABRKZS -
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BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

32. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 32. A EETESE)
Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements F=ZRLATFEEFEZRE (E)
(continued)
2020 —E—TE
Land and
building:
Industrial
— outside
Hong Kong
THRETF
TE-FEHEIN
HK$
Description S BIT
At beginning of the reporting period AR HA ) 71,645,000
Depreciation debited to profit or loss BREHBRZITE (2,307,534)
Fair value gain on revaluation credited to other  FH{LAFBEUWZSET A
comprehensive income Hup 2wk A 373,231
Exchange realignment PE H 3K 3,505,303
At the end of the reporting period REREHAR 73,216,000
Unrealised gains for the period included in profit ZKERRS A FE/EIBZ5ERE TR RE HiR
or loss held at the end of the reporting period BE AT =
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BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

32. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Description of the valuation techniques and inputs
used in Level 2 fair value measurement

(a)

(b)

Forward currency contracts

The fair value of forward currency contracts is measured
by comparing the contracted forward rates and the
quoted forward exchange rates for the remaining
contractual maturity, by the same bank, which are
observable at the end of the reporting period.

Properties located in Hong Kong

The properties located in Hong Kong were revalued by
Chung, Chan & Associates, independent professionally
qualified valuer, on the basis of market value by the
comparison approach, which is based on market
observable transactions of similar properties and adjusted
for differences in key valuation attributes, such as size and
age to reflect the conditions of the subject properties.

Description of the valuation techniques and inputs
used in Level 3 fair value measurement

(a)

Properties located in Mainland China

The fair value of the properties located in Mainland China
was revalued by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professionally qualified valuer, using depreciated
replacement cost approach. The valuer considered the
subject properties are specialised properties for which
there is no readily market observable transaction of
similar properties. The estimation of fair value of the
subject properties took into account their current cost of
replacement or reproduction, less deduction for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimisation.

32. AR EEFEE)

FoRNAFEEFEZBABER
fh{E T A

(a) BEREHER

(b)

g=

EHERARZATEESLR
ERRBITERREHR  ATH
RZBEBAREXRBTARE
MR 2 E A RMEEN RmMa

=
= °

WREEZ Y
NREBZMEHBELEXEGE
RGEMEETRABLRTISE
EMSTAEHGE BAUBEL
MBERNER S MRRZYE
AR ERBETERARNRE
M EELEREAE -

RATEEFEZBARBER

(CRED3 i il

(a)

17 R Bl A 2 M) 5%

MNAPEREZMERBIEE
EERMGEMEETRANES
BERAEEHNAE - HEMEE
AMEZBELE  THLTE
ABREZBRMERS - ibE
ZMEZRNTFEEIZLEREN
EEREERA  HIREERL
kemaERAEE REL -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

32. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs and description of valuation
techniques used in Level 3 fair value measurement

The quantitative information of the significant unobservable
input and description of valuation techniques used in Level
3 fair value measurement, including the description of the
sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs for recurring Level
3 fair value measurements, are as follows:

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

32. AR EEFEE)

E-ZRATFEEHBFAZEA
FUBEHARE > BLERRE
B
E=RATEENEFAL EATTH
2 A B Y BACEE R A E A
i PR E S = MA P EES R
> AR A RIS 2T Y SURE
T

Fair value at Valuation Sensitivity of fair value to
Description 31 December 2021 techniques Unobservable input changes in unobservable inputs
R-B--F+=A TUBRERAREL
i =t+-B2AVEE fhEL%E TURERARE AYEEHRERS
Asset
Property, plant and equipment
- Properties included in ~ HK$76,223,000 Depreciated Estimated costs of construction Assuming other factors remain
land and building: (2020: HK$73,216,000) replacement (HK$157 per sq. ft.) (2020: unchanged, the higher the

Industrial outside cost approach

HK$151 per sq. ft.) of similar

estimated cost of construction,

Hong Kong type of industrial premises with the higher the fair value, and

adjustment on age, condition, vice versa.
utility, etc.

EE

VERY TG

“DEBEETHRIET : 76,223,0008T REEENANE  BERIZMEEER - R RRHEMRRTE - HEARERAR
RERNIENE  (ZZ=ZF :73216,00087) RIBEHE T RERA B8 ATEESS R -

(1578 7/FHR)
(ZB=ZE 1518/ FAR) -

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group has a team comprising of executive directors and
finance manager reviewing estimation of fair value of the
properties. Fair values of the properties are estimated by the
independent professionally qualified valuer on an annual
basis. Discussions of the valuation process and results with the
executive directors and the Audit Committee are held twice a
year, for the Group’s interim and annual reporting.

SEMEERF

AEBYEZ A FEESHESERMB
TEREN/ AR - REMEZIAF
BESFHETIEXEERMEMT
s - AERFRERNEFMAAEHE
MPHkFRERERESNERRES

ATam ©
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BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. IR REEEERBEK

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and cash and
short-term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial instruments such as trade
receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade
payables and accrued liabilities and other payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term
debt obligations with a floating interest rate.

The Group’s funding policy uses short-term interest-
bearing debts to finance its working capital requirements
and interest-bearing debts over one year or internal
generated resources to finance its capital investments.
The Group borrows mainly at floating interest rates and
the use of fixed rate interest-bearing debts over one year
will only be considered for capital investments and under
favourable market conditions.

AEBZIZERIABEERERITR
HiptgE - ANIRE REMEFER - ZF
TRTAZTERNRAASELZES
KES - AKENBZHERNEEE
EzEMEBTA - PlanEKRRE - 78
[RIA - BE MEMERERIA - B
AR EAEREMREMFR

AEESRTAS R EZRBRAFIE
Rk - NERER - EERRNIRBES
R -  EFEEMMAEEREEZS
R AR - B

(a) FI=E

AEBENTHEMNESEBRAR TR
HEAKERBEB 2 ZBNEE
B e

AEENECHERAEHER
ERREHEBEENBE RIA—
FUENHEEBERKANTERE
HESFEARE - AKEEE
OSBRI RIERE - —F AL
EXHERERASEANNTS

T A ERBEEARE -
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BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(a) Interest rate risk (continued)

33. BiIEAMEEREERBE &)

(a) FEmEp2E)

ATRER TR EMEBREFD
2 MAXAEHESERE
BRT  NEBERRHRENCE
BEBNEERTE) ZBREED

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit after tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

-
2021 2020

—E--F e
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
Increase/  Increase in Increase/ Increase in
(Decrease) in  profit after (Decrease) in profit after
basis points tax  basis points tax
HEY  BRE#&EF BEE  BRB®EN
#m/(RP) CAL) & £m/ Cgd) CRd),/ L
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong dollar BT 10 (15,691) 10 (9,900)
Hong Kong dollar BT (10) 15,691 (10) 9,900

(b) MR

(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise mainly from (i) the operating units in Hong
Kong which maintain cash in Hong Kong dollar, their
functional currency, but make sales in United States dollar
("USD") and purchases in RMB. (ii) the majority of the
transactions of the operating units in Mainland China are
denominated in RMB but their funds are mainly sourced
from Hong Kong operating units. (iii) the operating unit
in Singapore which maintain cash in Singapore dollar, its
functional currency, but make sales in USD.

In view of the fact that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged
to USD and that the Group tries to match its assets and
liabilities with the same currency, the Group’s exposure to
USD foreign currency risk is minimal. The following table
demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant and
excluding the effect of the forward currency contracts,
of the Group’s profit after tax (due to changes in the fair
value of monetary assets and liabilities).

AEEEZHEEAR - AR
RAEEES L BRI EEY
e UWAHNEKE EHE
MET(TET]) - MHRBUAAR
IR E ()P B AREEEN
TEPARERS EHEST
EREESRBEL ¢ Ri)ELE
005 B A 5 TR
& LB LEE B RE N
£TIEE -

BN ETTRSTTHB R A EEE
AREABAEREAEEREE
REE  AEEMAZHEITIN
BRBREN - AT RERTRE
THREMBEBHRRFAERTE
REREBARZTE  MINE
EXRAEHRAE RS ZBER
T AEEBRREEN(REEE
ERABENATFEELRES)Z
BREDIT ©
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BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. IR EEEERBE &)
AND POLICIES (continued)
(b) Foreign currency risk (continued) (b) SMEERBR ()
Exposure to foreign currencies
HERR
2021 2020
ZB--F It 3
HKD RMB usb HKD RMB usb
B AR¥ EYH BT ARE e
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B BT BT BT
Financial assets SREE 3 58,656,913 8,468,064 3 40,973,737 8,541,100
Financial liabilities AR (46,000,000) - (6,309,739) (46,000,000) - (6,321,489)
Net exposure FRER (45,999,997) 58,656,913 2,158,325 (45,999,997) 40,973,737 2,219,612
If the currencies strengthened 7 & 5 {HEAE B 7 ke
by 5% against the KM ER5% BBk
functional currency bkl
of the respective (D) %M
entities,(decrease)/increase
in profit after tax (1,920,500) 2,448,926 90,110  (1,920,500) 1,710,654 92,669
If the currencies weakened by & &% X B EE 2 4
5% against the functional  E¥E535% [ %
currency of the respective 7
entities, increase/(decrease) #240,/(5i4)
in profit after tax 1,920,500  (2,448,926) (90,110) 1,920,500  (1,710,654) (92,669)
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F_—Ft+-A=t—HAILFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

b
=4

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk

33. BiIEAMEEREERBE &)

(c) EERMRK

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net
of impairment losses, represents the Group’s exposure to
credit risk without taking into account the value of any
collateral held or other credit enhancements.

Trade receivables

The Group trades only with recognised creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. The Group’s trading terms with its
customers are mainly on credit, except for new customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. Invoices
are normally payable within 60 days of issuance, except
for certain well-established customers, where the terms
are extended from 60 to 90 days. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control policy to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are regularly reviewed by senior management.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on credit risk but
to a lesser extent. Credit quality of a customer is assessed
based on an extensive credit rating and individual credit
limit assessment which is mainly based on the Group’s
own trading records.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk as 59% (2020: 58%) of the
balance representing a receivable from a single customer
(2020: single customer), which was derived from sales by
the precision parts and components segment.

RIEFEM BN KERN S RE
EREESINRRERBE KX
AEBEOEERR - X R R
P B EAERREMEEIRE
B{EE -

YRR

AEEERFEENE =FET
R WBANKEHHEE - A
REEEHETRINER @ &
ARBEEZERFR TR
E-AKEEEFPEEGHRP
IBRFHZAERER  EHN
EE—RBEEMKE — K%
EFBEANTRAXN - RIFE
BEFAZFANTEATRER
BiR- BREPHEEREE -
AEBEHREERKRERRE
ZEHRBEEREARESER
e aREEES TN AR
Wikt aREERB -

AEEAZEERRZEETE
REFEPZERFEEE - TP
FItEZTREAEZBRZIE
RERTZEEERR  BREE
- EFNEREEERER
B 1= A REAR A E A S AR E R G
MAETHE  ZAEETEERSE
BECHR Bk

RIBEER - NEERERKE
2 EERRETER59% (=
T_TF :58%)IRERBETE
B BN —BEF(ZT_TF:
—BEP) -
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BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

33. iIEAMEEREERBE &)

() FEERBRE)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range
of clients and the trade receivables are categorised by
common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL for trade receivables and
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date and has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment. The expected loss rate used in
the provision matrix is calculated for each category based
on actual credit loss experience over the past three years
and adjusted for current and forward-looking factors to
reflect differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historical data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s estimate on
future economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the year.

FEWRRTE ()

AREENEFPEHBEZNERPA
B - REWRRIB IR KRR RS E D
B REREPRRBRA OGN
FrA BB IR EE S - AEEK
AE At ERERBREN RS
EEEE UREBESEREAN
EHEHEERERIAERE
B TRIEREELEEEBR
RENBEERE  RREEBA
MGERE LB LR RE
THE REBE=ZFNERE
ERBELRTESEBENNEE
EEERMEHRERER - WRIE
ERIMATEARETHE  UR
iR gt = FIF b S 4% HA ] A 8O O
ZEMER  BREAEEE R
RGBT YRR TR B F R
B flgT

ERFEL 2 EEHERBAR
BALREH -
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BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. ¥ EMEEEERBE#)
AND POLICIES (continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (o) EERRE)
Trade receivables (continued) FEWARIE (&)
The information about the exposure to credit risk and FRBEEENENERENEE
ECL for trade receivables using a provision matrix is [2 Bz A 78 B {5 & B 18 & BH L i 40
summarized below: s 8
As at 31 December 2021 R-B-—-+Z-A=+—H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate amount allowance impaired
B IR R HEREE EREE FERE
% HK$ HK$
BT BT
Not past due i 7 460 2 0 72,804,365 - No #&
Less than 1 month past due 1 H A —1E B 0 29,330,412 - No &
1 to 3 months past due  #HI—Z= =1& A 0 4,777,229 = No &
3 to 6 months past due  #EHI=ZE <A A 0 201,970 - No &
1 to 2 years past due B —EME 100 285,479 285,479 Yes B

107,399,455 285,479

As at 31 December 2020 R-ZB_ZTF+_-_A=+—H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate amount allowance impaired
TRHAE R HRBRME EERE EERE
% HK$ HK$
BT BT
Not past due fed A 781 A 0 69,091,599 - No #&
Less than 1 month past due 3 &3> —1{& A 0 21,699,042 - No %
1 to 3 months past due  #EHI—Z=={AA 0 2,041,109 - No %
3 to 6 months past due  #EEI=ZF<{E A 0 271,075 = No £
1 to 2 years past due B —E W 100 254,979 254,979 Yes B

93,357,804 254,979
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HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

33. iIEAMEEREERBE &)

() FEERBRE)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade
receivables as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recognised loss
allowance of HK$285,479 (2020: HK$254,979) on the
trade receivables. The movement in the loss allowance for
trade receivables is summarised below:

FEWRRTE ()

RZEZ—F+=HA=+—H"
ANEE W EFEWEBRIERE A E 10
BR(ZZZZF : 8E)

A—E-_—F+—-_A=+—H"
7N 5 B B U BR TH T R B 18 B
#285,479%8 m( —Z & = T F :
254,979 7T ) o FE YRR 1A B 18 B
BzEsamT

2021 2020

—E-—F —ZETHF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

At beginning of year REH] 254,979 1,077,389

Increase in allowance Bl 212 30,500 -

Amount written off S B - (822,410)

At end of year RER 285,479 254,979
Other receivables B EK 5 E

The Group considers that the other receivables have
low credit risk based on the borrowers’ strong capacity
to meet their contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and low risk of default. Impairment on other
receivables is measured on 12-month ECL and reflects the
short maturities of the exposures.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience over the past
3 years (2020: 3 years) and the financial position of
the counterparties by reference to, among others, their
management or audited accounts and available press
information, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are
specific to the debtors and general economic conditions
of the industry in which the counterparties operate, in
estimating the probability of default of these financial
assets, as well as the loss upon default in each case.
The management of the Group considers the ECL of
these financial assets to be insignificant after taking into
account the financial position and credit quality of the
counterparties.
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R EIE - ERERALEEEA
Bi1E ’]iﬁi/}\b%%{fmﬁbj}f
08 KRB AR BRI o H M FE R
HRREATZEAANEHREE
EEstE - Wk TR HER o

EEFEHREESE  A&EE
EREBABE=F(ZFT=_F
F:=F)INELEREEBHEL
BRE AP EARR  HhEaE
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

33. BiIEAMEEREERBE &)

Credit risk (continued) (c) EERKE)
Other receivables (continued) Et W E (&)
There was no change in the estimation techniques or FRELH ZHEFEZREANR
significant assumptions made during the year. RS o
Liquidity risk (d) REBESREE
The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative and AREBRBEHRAGTLH RIT:E
derivative financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting NAREEFE ZFTERITES
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments mAEBWT
is as follows:
2021 2020
—E--E& S X2
After After After After
Within 1 year 2 years Within 1 year 2 years
Total  1yearor butwithin but within Total  Tyearor  butwithin  but within
amount on demand 2 years 5 years amount  on demand 2 years 5 years
-EhE  -FAE WERE —ERd FRE  AEKE
] REX MER BER iz BREX FER RER
HK$ HKS HKS$ HKS HK§ HK$ HK§ HKS
A BT BT B BT BT BT BT
Non-derivative: HiTER
Trade payables JERER 45,681,821 45,681,821 - - 52,030,114 52,030,114 = =
Financial liabilities indluded B2 BB EREM
in accrued liabilities and ~ ERZEZ 2 BER
other payables (note 21)  ([{521) 10,184,283 10,184,283 - - 9547977 9547977 - -
Interest-bearing FERORE
bank borrowings 18,799,104 18,799,104 - - 11,366,680 11,366,680 = =
Lease liabilities figafk 125,321 125,321 - - 970,726 843,29 127,430 =
74,790,529 74,790,529 - - 73915497 73,788,067 127430 -
Capital management (e) EXERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value.

AEEEREANEERRERRF
BARBNFELER N LR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) Capital management (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return of capital to shareholders or issue of new shares.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirement. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net
debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, lease liabilities, trade payables, accrued
liabilities and other payables less bank balances and cash.
Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

33. iIEAMEEREERBE &)

(e) EXREE(E)

rEEgRELERRESE(LER
HEREBWHEELFAE - &
B ABEERNGERE - AEE K
ERABRLIAFTRENRE - &
BEARFREKEBITHRG - A%
B TE ZE R EMINDRH INE
KEK - REEZT=_—F k=
E_EE+-_A=+—BItFE
N BEERERNNERZR - BUR
B REN e T E) o

AREBRAEABBEH RERH
BARBR ETVEBEFERINE
BEAMBEEFENE - BHEFE
BREFERTEEMEE - HE
BE ENRE- EitAERHE
B FIE - WHRRITEHR R
Be  BABEAAREE AR
iR - RBEPR 2 EXBE
(5 SN

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Interest-bearing bank and other mERITREMEER
borrowings 18,792,000 11,345,750
Lease liabilities HEaE 124,128 945,243
Trade payables FERTERIE 45,681,821 52,030,114
Accrued liabilities and other payables [E&T 8 & & EAb 5818 42,069,606 41,303,870
Less: Bank balances and cash o SRITEBRNIRS (94,352,977) (85,709,850)
Net debt BEFE 12,314,578 19,915,127
Total equity R 394,748,395 350,393,862
Total capital and net debt BEARREIRFE 407,062,973 370,308,989
Gearing ratio BERBELE 3% 5%
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z - —S+-A=+—HLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

34. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

34. D RIRR 2 FAIEAR MR

POSITION
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
Notes HK$ HK$
f BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B AR ZIEE 214,297,334 197,684,438
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other  FE{IRIE - 2& &
receivables E b & IR 280,493 15,801,910
Bank balances and cash ReMReFMEER 211,649 227,860
492,142 16,029,770
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables FE=t & (& K H il &~ K IE 410,360 265,820
Due to subsidiaries JE T B B X R 7RIE 105,788,748 107,570,259
Tax payables eI 695 23,558
106,199,803 107,859,637
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (105,707,661)  (91,829,867)
Net assets BEFE 108,589,673 105,854,571
EQUITY s
Share capital [N 25 26,700,480 26,700,480
Reserves A 27(b) 81,889,193 79,154,091
Total equity T AEER 108,589,673 105,854,571

W BRRRER T - —F=A—-+=H
EEEeHfERIREREM - WA T ALK
REE

This statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March
2022 and signed on its behalf by

Lai Pei Wor Chan Yau Wah
FELE A PR E
Director Director
o S
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Five-Year Financial Summary

BE_Z_—F+-A=+—RHLHFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the  IATNANEEPBERAERKERE 2 4
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the HEEKLBEHME @t HHkE ERAHEXLER
published audited consolidated financial statements, is set out  AMBEREK -

below.
RESULTS E5
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-HA=1t—HILEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B —Z2-FF ZE-NEF ZE-)N\F ZZ—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET TET
REVENUE WA 418,202 341,758 345,581 463,655 422,925
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B BT A 72,631 77,609 22,386 5,109 9,146
Tax IR (9,333) (10,699) (5,727) (3,884) (854)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE ¥iN/NETE 2 =N

TO OWNERS OF THE {3 A
COMPANY 63,298 66,910 16,659 1,225 8,292
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
31 December
+=—A=t+—8
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
¥ —T-TF —TNEF —FT-N\F —_TtF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T T THETT
Total assets BEE 531,050 486,665 401,193 425,565 429,413
Total liabilities weE (136,301) (136,271)  (114,887)  (151,991)  (162,574)

394,749 350,394 286,306 273,574 266,839
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